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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

Dear Shareholders, 

At the outset, please accept my sincere wishes for the good 

health and safety of you and your loved ones. I am delighted to 

welcome you all at the third (3rd) Annual General Meeting of 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited and present the audited 

Financial Statement for the year 2022-23. I would like to thank 

each one of you for making it convenient for joining this meeting. 

 

 

About the Company: 

I would like to place before you, few highlights of your Company for the Financial Year 2022-

23.  

 

IrconGRHL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (“IRCON”), has been 

incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle by its holding company (IRCON), on 24th December, 

2020. The main object of IrconGRHL is to carry on the business of “Upgrading of Gurgaon-

Pataudi-Rewari section of NH-352W from km 43.87 (design length 46.11 km) as a feeder route 

on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojana in the State of Haryana, in accordance 

with the terms of concession agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). The 

Concession Period of the project is 15 years excluding construction period of 2 years from the 

Appointed Date. 

 

The total project bid cost is ₹900 Crore plus escalation wherein 40% project cost is 

reimbursable by NHAI and 60% is funded by SPV. Your Company is accordingly funding 

project Construction Cost of ₹685 Crore out of which ₹412.90 Crore is to be financed by way 

of Equity & Debt in the ratio of 1:3. The Company has availed the term loan facility of ₹309.68 

Crore from Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) on 25th June, 2021 for execution of project. The loan 

of ₹20,000 has been disbursed by Bank as on 31.03.2023.  

 

Due to various constraints like Covid-19, land encumbrances & delay in COS approvals upto 

31st March, 2023, your company has achieved a total progress of 24.35% and financial 

progress of 20.65% of total scope covered in the Concession Agreement.  
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Financial Performance: 

As on 31st March, 2023, Net worth of your Company is ₹7507.27 lakhs; Total income is 

₹15808.32 lakhs and Profit after tax is ₹367.33 lakhs.  

 

Compliances and Disclosures 

Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder are being 

fully adhered to by your Company.  As per Office Memorandum dated 10th July 2014 and 11th 

July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises, CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose 

Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the DPE Guidelines on Corporate 

Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on your Company. 

 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 

Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it exemption from compliance of Annual MoU 

exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24, in line with the Memorandum of 

Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 

10th March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 07th November, 2022 and 06th February, 

2023 has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the 

financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively. 

 

Acknowledgements 

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and 

co-operation extended to the Company by Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MoRTH), 

NHAI, Ircon, Auditors of the Company and all those who have supported and guided us 

during the year. I express my deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard 

work. And last, but not least, I would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their 

guidance and continuous support. 

 

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  

 
For and on behalf of 

 Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited                      
                                                                         

Sd/-                      
(Parag Verma)  

Chairman  
DIN: 05272169 

 
Date:   7th August, 2023  
Place: New Delhi 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 3rd Annual Report of Ircon Gurgaon 

Rewari Highway Limited (IrconGRHL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company and Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023. 

 

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

   

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited (IrconGRHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon 

International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on 24th December, 2020 as a Special Purpose 

Vehicle (SPV) for executing the project works in the State of Haryana by National Highways 

Authority of India (NHAI). The main object of IrconGRHL is to carry on the business of 

“Upgrading of Gurgaon-Pataudi-Rewari section of NH-352W from 0 km to 43.87 km (design 

length 46.11 km) as a feeder route on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojana in 

the State of Haryana, in accordance with the terms of concession agreement with NHAI.  
 

        

  

The Concession Agreement has been signed with NHAI on 20th January, 2021. The Appointed 

Date fixed by NHAI is 24th November, 2021. IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor 

for execution of said work. The project is in execution phase. The achieved progress was 

24.35% up to 31st March, 2023 and likely to be completed on 30th June, 2024. 

 

In terms of concession agreement, the total project bid cost is ₹900 Crore and first year O&M 

cost is ₹2.5 Crore. The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during 

construction and balance 60% is receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The total 

Project cost of ₹900 Crore out of which ₹412.90 Crore is to be financed by way of Equity & 
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Debt in the ratio of 1:3. Accordingly, the Company has availed the term loan facility of ₹309.68 

Crore from Indian Overseas Bank (“IOB”) on 25th June, 2021 for execution of Project. As on 

31st March, 2023 a loan of ₹20,000/- has been disbursed by IOB.  

 

 

 

Due to delay in handing over of the encumbrance free land, Tree cutting, NGT ban on mining 

in the vicinity area, 2nd wave of Covid-19 and other issues not attributable to Concessionaire, 

there is delay in the project progress for which EOT has been applied with the Client. These 

issues are likely to be resolved by 31st August, 2023and the revised project completion date is 

30th June, 2024. 

 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial 

Year 2022-23 as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS). 

 

Financial performance indicators as on 31st March 2023: 

                                                                                                                    (Amount in ₹ in Lakh) 
 

Sl. No. 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2022

1.  Equity Share Capital 5.0 5.0  

2.  
Other Equity (includes 
Reserves and Surplus) 

  7502.27 1834.94 

3.  Net worth    7507.27 1839.94 

4.  Borrowings  0.20                          0.20 

6



 

 
       

5.  Total Assets and Liabilities  
15895.25    

2793.13 
6.  Revenue from Operations 15748.37 2467.52 

7.  Other Income  59.95 - 

8.  Total Income  (6) + (7) 15808.32 2467.52 
9.  Profit Before Tax 490.88 0 
10.  Profit/(Loss) After Tax 367.33 (1.11) 

11.  Net Cash flow  835.77 107.62 
 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 

 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023. 

 

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 

head ‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of ₹367.27 

lakhs in Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2023.  

 

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION: 

 

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 

March, 2023 is ₹4 crore comprising of 40,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each and ₹ 5 lakhs 

comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each respectively.  During the year under 

review, there was no changes in the share capital of your Company and Ircon International 

Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up capital of the Company.  

 

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 

Rules, 2019 dated 22nd January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary 

(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.  

 

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 

 

The total Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is ₹835.77 lakh. 

 

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies 

of the Company.  
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7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 

Board of Director: 

 

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23  

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by 

the holding company (IRCON).  

 

During the year under review, your Company had re-designated Shri Parag Verma [having 

DIN: 05272169], as the Chairman (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, vice Shri Ashok 

Kumar Goyal w.e.f. October, 10, 2022. Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal ceased to be the Director 

and Chairman of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the holding 

Company [IRCON] w.e.f. October, 10, 2022. The holding Company has nominated Shri 

Devendra Kumar Sharma [having DIN: 08556821] as Part time Director in place of Shri 

Ashok Kumar Goyal w.e.f. October, 10, 2022. 

 

The Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and guidance & 

support given by Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal during his tenure as Chairman and Directors of 

the Company. 

 

As on 31st March, 2023, total number of Director is four (4) including Chairman, nominated 

by IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:  

Category, Name & 
Designation 

DIN Appointment or cessation (during 
the year, if any) 

Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal 
Chairman 

05308809
Ceased to be the Director & Chairman 
w.e.f. 10th October,.2022  

Shri Parag Verma 
Director 

05272169
Re-designated as Chairman w.e.f. 10th 
October, 2023 

Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma 
Director 

08556821
Appointment as Additional Director 
w.e.f. 10th October, 2022 

Shri Masood Ahmad  
Director 

09008553 
Appointed as Director w.e.f. 24th 
December, 2020 

Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda   
Director 

08517013 

Appointed as Director w.e.f. 1st June, 
2022  
Regularized at the 2nd AGM on 23rd 
August, 2022 

       

Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma was nominated by IRCON as Additional Part-time Director 

of the Company w.e.f. 10th October, 2022, who hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Companies 

8



 

 
       

Act, 2013 from Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma giving his candidature for appointment as 

Director, liable to retire by rotation, in the ensuring Annual General Meeting (AGM). His 

appointment as Director by Shareholders is included in the notice of ensuring AGM.   

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Parag 

Verma shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his 

reappointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual 

General Meeting. 

 

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director. 

 

 Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

of the Company during the Financial Year 2022-23 are as follows: 

Category, Name & Designation Designation  Date of Appointment 

Shri Deepak Kumar Garg Chief Executive Officer  17.03.2021 
Shri Alin Roy Choudhury Chief Financial Officer  01.07.2021 
Shri Ankit Jain  Company Secretary  17.03.2021 

 

8. Board Meetings: 

 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Board met five (5) times on 12th April, 2022, 17th 

May, 2022, 4th August, 2022, 3rd November, 2022 and 31th January, 2023. The interval 

between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 

2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings are as follows: 

Date of The Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

12th April, 2022 4 3 
17th May, 2022 4 4 

4th August, 2022 4  4  
3rd November, 2022 4 4 

31th January, 2023 4  4  

 

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during 

the FY 2022-23 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM): 
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Name of Director Meeting Date Whether 
attended 
last AGM 
held on 
23.08.2022

Total 
Meetings 
held 
during 
the 
tenure 

No. of 
Meeting
s 
attende
d 

% of 
Atte
nda
nce 

12
.0

4.
20

22
 

17
.0

5.
20

22
 

04
.0

8.
20

22
 

03
.1

1.
20

22
 

31
.0

1.
20

23
 

Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal 
(upto 10th October, 2022) 

   - - Yes 3 3 100 

Shri Parag Verma      Yes 5 5 100 

Shri B. Mugunthan       No     5 5 100 
Shri Masood Ahmad ×     Yes 5 4 80 
Shri Devendra Kumar 
Sharma 
(w.e.f. 10th October, 2022) 

- - -   N.A. 2 2 100 

 

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 

 

In terms of notification dated 5th July 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

inter-alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014, an unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted 

from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on its Board. Also, read with the 

provision of Section 177(1), 178(1) and rule-6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2014, the requirement of constituting of the Board Committees viz. Audit 

Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) is not applicable on such 

companies. 

 

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 

read with OM dated 11th July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) 

are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for 

CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on 

IrconGRHL. 

 

IrconGRHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of 

IRCON, is, therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the 

declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. Further, the 

constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board 

is also not applicable. 
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10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  

31st March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 

and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 

2023 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date; 

 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

 

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

11. DIRECTORS’ OBSERVATION AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT): 

 

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and 

need no further explanation. 

 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any 

clarification/ explanation. 

 

12. STATUTORY AUDITOR: 

 

M/s Rajan Malik & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, had been appointed as Statutory 

Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 vide CAG letter dated 31st August, 2022. They have 
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confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  

 

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for Financial Year 2022-23 

with NIL observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with No 

review certificate from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the Financial Year 

2022-23. 

 

13. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

 

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s., MM Associates, Cost Accountants as Internal 

Auditors for the FY 2022-23, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company in terms of 

Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

14. COST RECORDS: 

 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Sub-section (1) 

of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company during 

Financial Year 2022-23.  

 

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

 

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 from the practising company secretary is not applicable to the Company during 

the Financial Year 2022-23.   

 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

  

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 

provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under 

review. 
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17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the related party transactions with the holding company, 

IRCON were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved 

in terms of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form 

AOC-2 are enclosed to this report as “Annexure – 1”. 

 

18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of 

the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.  

 

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 

A. Conservation of energy: - 

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – NIL 

ii. the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Nil  

iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment – NIL 

 

B. Technology absorption: - Not applicable  

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution; 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 

the beginning of the financial year) 

a. the details of technology imported; 

b. the year of import; 

c. whether the technology been fully absorbed; 

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof; and 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 
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C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - Not applicable  

  i   Foreign Exchange Earned  

         ii  Foreign Exchange Outgo 

             

20. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk 

to the business of the Company. 

 

21. CREDIT RATING: 

 

During the FY 2022-23, CARE Ratings Limited has provided CARE AA-(CE) rating for 

the long-term bank facilities of Rs.309.68 Crore to your Company. 

 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) are at present not applicable to the Company. 

 

23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

As per Notification dated 5th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  

 

IrconGRHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the 

remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), 2014 as a part of 

the Directors' Report.  

 

In IrconGRHL employees are deputed by its holding company. However, one employee is 

appointed on the contractual basis.  

 

24. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

 

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the period under review. 
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25. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members 

pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 

2014. 

 

26. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the size 

of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting 

Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial 

statements. The Company has appointed an independent firm of Cost Accountants as 

Internal Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with 

adequate internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The 

Internal Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The 

Reports of the Auditors are placed before the Board of Directors for discussion and 

necessary action. 

 

27. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE  

 

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 

status of the Company and its operations in future during the Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

28. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 

PREFERENCE POLICY 

 

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 

Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 

registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than ₹500 Crore and all 

CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables 

Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of 

India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to 

monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, 

Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such 

instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the Company has 
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boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 31st January, 2022 to facilitate the financing of trade 

receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and realisation of their payment 

before the due date.    

 

29. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

  

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 

on the Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters 

under POSH Act. 

 

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any compliant relating to 

sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

30. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

 

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of a 

vigil mechanism are not applicable to the Company during the Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

31. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 

 

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during 

the FY 2022-23, however, RTI applications transferred from DPE were duly replied during 

the FY 2022-23. 

 

32. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5th June, 2015, sub-section 

(2), (3) & (4) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding the performance 

evaluation shall not apply to Directors of Government Company.  

 

Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, 

all part-time Directors of the Company are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The 

evaluation of these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined 
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criteria in line with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence performance evaluation 

of Directors is not applicable on your Company. 

 

33. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

 

During the period under review, the Company is in compliance with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  

 

34. APPLICATION/ PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 

CODE, 2016 

 

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 

 

35. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 

 

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines 

dated 10th March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are 

subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its holding company and holding 

company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary 

companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31st of March of the 

base year. 

 

In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letters dated 7th November, 2022 

and 06th February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for 

the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively. 

 

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport and Highways (MORTH) 

National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks, 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) and Statutory Auditors for their support, and 

look forward to their continued support in the future. 

 

We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all 

levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and 

sincere thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during 
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the period under review. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, 

solidarity, cooperation and support.  

For and on behalf of 
Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

 
 

Sd/- 
                    (Parag Verma)  

Chairman  
DIN: 05272169 

 
Date:  7th August, 2023  
Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE - 1 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto during the period from 
1st April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023  
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: As follows 

 

 
       Note:  
       Apart from above said transactions, IRCON (holding company) has deputed its employee i.e. 

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary to IrconGRHL and the 
salary, benefits (like PF, GIS, Society deduction, related payments etc.) and other 
miscellaneous payment in nature if travelling/ ticket cost etc. paid to such deputed employees 
as per IRCON’s policy are reimbursed on actual cost basis.    

 
For and on behalf of  

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
 

Sd/- 
(Parag Verma)  

Chairman 
DIN: 05272169 

Date:   1st August, 2023  
Place: New Delhi 

Sr. No. 

Nature of 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the Contracts or 
Arrangements 
or Transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any: 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any: 

1.  

EPC Agreement  
(For Appointing 
Ircon International 
Limited as EPC 
Contractor for 
execution of project 
works of  
“upgrading of 
Gurgaon-Pataudi-
Rewari section of 
NH-352W from km 
43.87 (design 
length 46.11 km) ” 

Estimated 
Duration 24 
Months 
(Period for 
Construction 
by EPC 
Contractor) 

 
The Contract has 
been awarded to 
IRCON for a 
consideration of 
₹606.54 Crore 
exclusive GST @ 
12%. 
 
 

03rd Board 
Meeting held 
on 26th 
February, 
2021  

NIL  (As 
on Date) 

2.  

Lease Agreement   
(To take on lease 
the Office Premises 
of IRCON) 

 (25th 
December, 
2020 to  31st 
March, 2023) 

Lease 
Agreement 
executed on 18th 
February, 2021 
for rent @ 
₹31,171/- p.m. 
plus GST 

1st Board 
Meeting held 
on 28th 
December, 
2020 

NIL  (As 
on Date) 



Rajan Malik & Co. 
--------------------------------~~---CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of 
Ireon Gllrgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

Report on the Audit of tbe Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of Inoo Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, the statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 11 March 2023, and the notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation. 

In OUf opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid lod AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and loss and other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the for the year ended 31 51 March 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial 
Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethica l responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and auditors' report thereon. 

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Board 's Report including Annexures to Board 's 

Report but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board 's Report 

is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor'S report. 

O .. h F' . I S d tl ~'UK & • d d ur opmlon on t e mancla tatements oes not cover 1e 0 . an we 0 not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. :t~ .. \ ~'Ofl.. ....... 
~" SO 
it .' .::! 
~ ~ 

'f-9"( REO ~cc.r:s 

Ph.: +91-120-6618128/29/30,9891962789, 9891278999. E-Mail : rmalik@rajanmalikca.com 
Work: 409-410, 4" Floor, Tower A, The i-Thum, A-40, Sector 62, Noida - 201301 (U.P.) 

R"9d Office : 40/230, CR Park, Opp. B-Block Kalkaji. New Delhi- llOOI9. Website: www.rajonmalikca.com 
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other infonnation 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is 
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have perfonned, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
infonnation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit ofthe financial statements as a whole, and in fonning our opinion thereon. 
As per Para-5 of Standard of auditing-701 "Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent 
Auditor's Report" reporting of Key Audit matter not applicable on unlisted companies hence same are not 
reported. 

Responsihilities of Management and those charged with governance for Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
se lection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fmancial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's fmancial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are colJ3.idered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influenc4he. l 019'c decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Financial Statements. :l O\Q~ .. 

~ , ~ 

~ ~ .r · 
2 jPage 

21



RAJAN MALIK & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We are also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude On the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude, 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor' s report to the related 
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (<<the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in tenns of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013, we give in the 'Annexure A' , a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

3 1P ag e 
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a) We have sought and obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our op inion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

e) Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act is not applicable 
pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463 (E) dated 5th June 20 15, issued by the Central 
Government of India. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
'Annexure B'. 

g) Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable vide 
notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central Government of India. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 
Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us: 

4 j Page 

I. The Company has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its financial position -
refer note no. 25 to the Financial Statements. 

II . The Company did not have any long-tenn contracts including derivative contracts for 
wh ich there were any material foreseeable losses. 

Ill. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

IV. 

a. The management has represented that. to the best of it' s knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 
persons or entities, including foreign entities Intennediaries, with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intennediary shall , whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company Ultimate Benefic iaries or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the company from any persons or ent ities, including 
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understand ing, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any man~L..whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party Ultimate Beneficiaries or provi«~al ¥t.~antee , security or the 

" v 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and ...,'" 0\· 1>- • 

~ \-\ ~ 
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c. Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule II (e) as 
provided under (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

d. The company has not declared or paid dividends during the year. 

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India we report that· • 
S.no Directions 

A Whether the company has system in place to process all 
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the 
implications of processing of accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the Integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated. 

B Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver/write ofT debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to the company's inability to 
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, 
lender is a government company, then this direction is 
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender company). 

C Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/Te(:eivable 
for specific schemes from CentraVState Government or 
its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per 
its tenns and conditions? List the cases of deviation, 

Place: - Noida 
Datc: - 12.05.2023 
UDIN: - 23521879BGTVVF1619 

5 1Pa ge 

Auditor's Replies 

As disclosed to us by the 
management, no such 
transactions .re recorded 
outside the IT Software except 
income billing for which no 
financial implication were 
observed. 
There is no restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of 
waiver I write off debts / loans 
I interest etc. made by a lender 
to the company during the 
year. 

No funds (grants/subsidy etc.) 
have been received from 
CentraVState Government or its 
agencies 
schemes. 

under any specific 

For Rajao Malik & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

IC~jr 59N 

u~ar Chaurasia 
(partner) 

lCAl Membership No.: - 521879 
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Annexure 'A' 

The Annexure referred to in pa ragrap h I of Our Report on "Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements", 

We report that: 

i. The company has no Property Plant & Equipment or intangible assets during the year ended 
March 31, 2023, Accordingly, clause 3(i) is not applicable. Further, as represented by the 
management, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding 
any benami property under the benami transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 
made thereunder. 

ii. 
(a) The Company does not have any inventories during the reporting year. Accordingly, 

clause 3(iiXa) is not applicable .. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits at any point of time during 
the year Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable. 

iii. According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, the company has not made investments in, nor provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the 
year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iiiXa), 3(iii)(b), 3(iiiXc), 3(iiiXd), 3(iiiXe) and 3(iiiXf) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the books of account, the Company has not given/made any loans, investments, guarantees, and 
security to any party covered under section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence 
reporting under sub clause iv of the order is not applicable to the company. 

v. According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, and as per our examination of records, 
the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits from the public and 
therefore, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 
76 or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed there under, are 
not applicable to the Company. 

vi. by the management, 
hence 
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a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax, 
cess, and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable, have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations 
given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31 st of March 2023 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

b) According to the records of the company and the information and explanations given to us, 
there is no amount payable in respect of income tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, value added tax and cess whichever applicable, which have not been deposited on 
account of any disputes. 

vii. The company has not surrendered or disclosed as Income any transactions not recorded in the 
books of account during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961. 

VIII . 

ix. 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company 
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for 
wh ich they were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have 
been used for long term purposes by the company. 

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is 
not applicable 

(f) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is 
not applicable. 

a) The company has not raised any money by way Dr--initial public offer or further public offer 
;.r,h"':Lh 

(including debt instruments) during the year. " tngty,.:.c \ use 3(x)(a) of the Order is not , . 
applicable. ;j NO\I)i\ ! 

7 [Page .!,i ,P. '-
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fu lly, partially or 

optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 

app licable. 

(a) Based on exam ination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
in formation and explanations given to us , no fraud by the company or any fraud on the 

company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-sect ion 
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no 
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company 

xi. The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under subclauses (a to c) of clause xi i 

of the order are not applicable to the company. 

xii. According to the records of the company and the information and explanations given to us, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as 

required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiii. 
(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the 

company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

bus iness. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the 
period under audit. 

xiv. In our opin ion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and 
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company 

xv. (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause 
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

8 1Page 
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(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any Non­
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) 

from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of Ind ia Act, 1934. Accordingly. clause 

3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(e) In OUT Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment 
Company (elC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. 

clause 3(xvi)(c) oflhe Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group does not 

have any CIC as part oflhe Group. 

xvi. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year ended March 31, 2023 or in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

xvii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not app licable 

xviii . According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viabil ity of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabil ities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

xix . Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the company. 
Accordingly, clauses 3(xxXa) and 3(xx)(b) ofthe Order are not applicable. 

xx. The company is not required to prepare Consol idate financial statement hence this clause is not 
applicable. 

.s 
'jOJJl~9N 

Place: - Noida 
D •• e, - 12.05.2023 
UDIN, - 2352I879BGTVVFI6I9 
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Annexure 'B' 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("'the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting afIreaD Gurgaon Rewari Highway 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended 31 s1 March 2023. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsib le for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfonn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures se lected depend on the auditor' s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over fmancial reporting. 

IO IPage 
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RAJAN MALIK & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

I. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors ofthe company; and 

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial 

Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31 , 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants oflndia. 

Place: - Noida 
Date: - 12.05.2023 
UDIN: - 23521879BGTVVF1619 

I1) P age 

For Rajan Malik & Co. 

il ar Chaurasia 
(partner) 

ICAI Membership No.: - 521879 
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Ireon Gurgaon Rewari IlighwBy Limited 

C 1:'Ii :-l ' -'S3091>L2020GOIl 7 -'9-' 1 

Balallc~ Sh e~ t as at 31 st \la rch.1023 

IA Il amounts in INR Lakhs exccpt share data and unless Olhenl is.: statcd) 

l>grti~uI ITS 

ASSETS 

NOI1-Curr~ l1t t\ ss ~ts 

(a) Dcti:rred Tax ,\55ets IncO 

(b) Other Non ·Curre11l Assets 

Currtnt aSStlS 
(a) FInancial assets 

( II Trade Recel\"ablc 

(II ) C~h and c~h c"Iui\'aknts 

(II I' Other Current FlI1an~Lal s Assets 

(h ) CUl"Tent tax assets (Net) 

(clO!h<'r Current Asscts 

1"otu 

3 
4 

Tutlll 

5 

" 52 
53 
6 
J 

Total 

ilifoOI IIii 

A s at 31st As at 31st 
March. 2023 Mart h. 2022 

0.5-' 1.02 
0.36 

O.S-' UK 

-' .5 5-' 97 
94839 11262 

8.24873 2.480.46 
11890 

2.023 72 198 67 

Grand Total 

EQlTry ""I> LI ABILITIES 
Equity 

(i) Equit; share capital 

(i i ) Othcr Eqult~ 

Liabilllie.' 
(I) 1"on_Currrnt Liabilities 
(a) Financ.alll3hlhue5 

II )Bormwl11g 

(ii) Current Liabilities 
la) Fmanclal liabIlItIes 

t I) Trade pa)ables 

IA I TOI<.1 oUlstand l11 g dues of mIcro enterprlScs and small entcrprlses 

(B ) Total OutstandIng dues ofCreduo[!; other than MIcro and small 

entcrpnses 
t II) Other Current tinanClal liabilities 

tb) Other Currcnt L,ab, llucs 

8 500 500 
7,50227 1.83-' ,9-' 

Total 7.507.27 1.839.9", 

9 020 020 

10 
101 

o 15 
-U0439 877 63 

102 577.28 0.04 
11 3.605.95 75.32 

Total 8.387.98 953.19 
Grant! '1'0 . .. 1 15.89!U5 2.79J.13 

Summary ofslgmiicant aCCOUllting pohcies 2 
The accompanymg notes arc an Integral pan of the finanC Ial statementS I-J -' 

r(ac~ NOIDA 

Date Id()f/~ 

IDlrc' 
(DIN 090(8553) 

A,,~b 
tCll1efF lnance Officer ) 

Place New Deih, 
Date 1.(/tJJ/<OV 

For and on behalfofthe Board of Dlrcctors of 

Irro ll GlirglOlI ReWM ri lIigh" ay Lilnit ~d 

~ .*-
Mugunthan BOJlI Gowda 

tDlrcctor) 

(DIN -08517013) 

rVl 
Dce~3r Garg 

IChief E::::u~l~mcer) 
~ --~ 

Ankll Jam 
ICompany Secrc\3r)) 

1r.1cmbership No :35053) 
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Ircon Curgaon Rewari Highw3)' Limited 
CI N:-U453091)12020GO 137-19-11 
Statement ofllrofit and loss for the year endl'd Jist i\1arch 2023 

(An amounts in INR Lakhs except share data and unk-5S olh ... rwise slaled) 

Particulars 

REVENUE: 
Revenue from operations \11'::1) 
Other Income 

EXPENSES: 
Project Expenses 

Employ ...... Benefit Expense 

Finance cost 

Olher Expenses 

Profit/( Loss) before tax 

Tall: U I'enSh 
1) Current Tax 

-For Current) car 

-For Earlier ~ cars 
2) Deferred ta.x 
Profit/fLoss) for th e year 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Lossl 
A. i) Ilems thaI will not be redassifkd 10 prolil or loss 

Notes 

12 
II 

Total (A) 

" 15 
16 
17 

Tota l (S) 

fA-B ) 

] 

ii) [ncomc Ta: .. relating to ilcms that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

B. i) [terns that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
ii) lncomc Tax relating 10 items Ihat will be reclassiiicd to profil and loss 

Other Comprehensive inconle/(foss) for the year 

Total COnlllrthensin incomei( loss) for the year 

Ellrnill~ per equity share 
Ii) Basic! In Rupees) 

Iii) Diluted! In Rupees) 
Face \'a lu e per shllre 
Summa,,"' of significant acnll.mting pollcio:s 
Tho: accompanying noto:s arc an Integral part oflhc financial stalt'lllenIS. 

26 

2 
1-34 

iliiooglhl 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Jist i\1 arch, 2023 31st March. 2022 

15.7-18.37 2.467.52 
59.95 

15,808.32 2,467.52 

14.953.23 2.442.24 
[07.56 18.31 
2h30 0.23 

11.36 6.74 

15.3 17.44 2,467.52 

490.88 

123.07 
1.08 

0.48 0.03 
367.33 ( 1.11) 

367.33 (1.11 ) 

7J.U5 (2.21) 
7J.U5 12 .21) 

10.00 10.00 

As per our report of C\'cn dme 
For Rajan Malik & Co. 

For and on beh,Moflhe Roard of Directors of 

Ircon Gurgaon Rtwari Highway Limittd 

ICAI 

Placo: : NQIDA V 
DOl" IIl /O> /,,0 

Masoo Ahmad Najar 
(Dire or) 
(DIN: 09008553) 

Place: Nc\\ Delhi 

Date: j.J../orN' U 

M"g~" 
(Director) 

(DIN:·085170lJ) 

~ 
D~marGarg 

(Chicf~::;U~Uc Ollieer) 

A'vJ-»"-~ 
Ankitlain 

:35053) 
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Ireon Gurgaon Ht .uri Ilighway Urnit rd 
CIS :.1 t "5)0'.11) LlOl0GO 1),..9 .. 1 

Sialfmeni ofeha n!:t~ in t quity fur tht yn r enuru jist ~l areh . lll23 

(All amounlli In INR I alJJs ewept share data and unless othen. ISC Slated) 

A. f. qllit~· Sharf Capit al 

Opo.·l1Ing Balance 
I\dd Issue of eqUlI) share capital 

Less Eqlllt} Shar~"S forfeited during Ihe ) car 

n. Othrr [quit" 

I'arlieulars 

,\5 HI OI SI ' \Wl! . 2011 

TOial prolll for the period 

Other comprehenSive Income for the reM 
Total compnhens;' e income for the rur 

Irllcrcst fn.-e loon from holdin g. com pan) • 

1'01111 cum prrh~l1 shc incomr for th t yu r 

,\ s I I jlsl \l arch. 2022 

,\ ~ I I Ois l ,\ pril . 2022 

TOial profit for Ihe year 
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InterC'St ITl'C loon front holding cornp:m) ' 

,\ s a t j is t \l arch 2023 

Hcscn'U ud 
Surplus 

Rtl linrd n rnings 
105 

(I II) 

( 1.11) 

(11.06) 

, 0.(6) 

367 jj 

367.33 

367.27 

As at J is t 
'brrh.2023 

'00 

~ .OO 

!)etmcd Equily 
Instrumt n t · 

1.8)500 

I.IU~.OO 

1.8J5.oo 

I.lIJS.OO 

5300 00 
7. I J~.OO 

Asat )l st 
\lurh. 2022 

TOI~I 

'00 

5.00 

1.05 

0 .11) 

iI . 1I 1 

1.8JMO 

1.8JJ.8" 

1.8J-l.'.l " 

J67.JJ 

I.SJU~ 

5JOO.OO 

7.502.!7 
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S"mm~ of slgmfieant accoonllllg polleli:S 2 
The acC{)mpan~ Ing notes are an Integral part orthe financIal Stalemen ts 1·)4 

I' loec 

Date 

·019859N 

(Ch,cCFmance Officer! 

l'laee Ne" Deih, 

Dal~ 

For and on behal r of the Board of Directors of 

Irton Gurgaon Rr .uri II i!:" .. . ,. Umitrd 

Gov.da 
IDlr~tul'l 

{l)IN .(l8~ 1701) I 

D«~'~ (Chld~~:u~~ Officel'l p.,w . .-r" 
A nkll Jam 

(Compan) Secl\."\lU') I 
t1><kmb .... rshlp No )505)) 
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J rcon Gu rgaon Rcwari Highway Limited 
Notes to finan cial statements for th e yea r ended March 31 , 2013 

l. Corpor.lte Information 

lreon Gurgaon Rewari highway Limited (IrconG RH L) is a who lly owned subsidiary of I rcoll International Limi tl>d 
(J RCON). publ ic sector construct ion company dom iciled in India. IrconG RHL (CIN U45309DL2020GOl37494I ) 
is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 app licable in India. The Company came into 
existence when IRCON was awarded the work of "Upgradation of Gurgaon- Pataudi·Rcwllri section of NH-352 
from Km 0.00 to Km 43.87 (design length46.11 Km) as feeder route on Hybrid annuity mode under Bharatmala 
Pariyojna in the State of Haryana" in accordance with the tenns and conditions in the Concession Agreement by 

ational Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In pursuant to the provisions of" Request for Proposal" , the selected 
bidder ' IRCOI ' has fonned a Special Purpose Vehicle (S PV) named lreon Gurgaon Rewari Highway limited as 
wholly owned subsidiary of IReON. incorporated on 24.12.2020. Accordingly. IrconGRHL has signed the 
Concession Agreement with NI-I AI on 20.01.2021 for the project value amount ing to Rs 900 Crore. llle 
Concession period is 730 days commencing from Appoi nted Date i.e. 24.11.2021. The registered office of the 
com pany is located at C-4, District Centre. Sake!. New De lhi- 110017. 

The presen tation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figu res in financia l statements 
are presented in lakh. by roundi ng ofT upto two decimals except for per share data and as otherwise stated. 

The financial statement are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeti ng held on 
12.05.2023. 

2. Sig nifica nt Acco un ting Po lic ies 

2.1 B;.sis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with account ing principles general ly 
accepted in India. includ ing the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under sect ion 133 orthe Companies 
Act. 2013 read togethcr wi th Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended 
from time to t ime) and presentation req uirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act. 2013. (Ind 
AS compl iant Schedule II I). as applicable to the fi nanc ial stalemenlS. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going coneem basis fo llowing accnl3l system of accounting. The 
Company has adopted the historica l cost basis for assets and liabilities. except fo r the fo llowi ng assets and liabilities 
which have been measured at fai r va lue: 

• Prov isions. where the effect of lime value of money is material are measured at present va lue 
• Certain fi nanc ial assets and liabi lities measured at fai r va lue 
• Defined benefit plans and other long-tenn employee benefits 

The Company's financial statements are re(XJrted in Indian Rupees. which is also the Company's functional 
currency. and a ll val ues are rou nded to the nearest Lakhs (I R 00,000). except when otherwise indicated. 

The statement of cash now has been prepared under the ind irect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of 
Cash Flows. 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

A summary of the significant accou nting polic ies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as 
given be low. These accounting policies have been app lied consistently to a ll periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

111 the balance sheet based 0 11 

sset is treated as current when it is: 
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Jrcon Curgaon Rewa ri Highway Limited 
Notes 10 fina ncial statements for the yea r ended March 31 , 2023 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nonna l operating cycle. 
• Held primarily for the purpose of tradi ng. 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period. or 
• Cash or cash eq ui va lent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to senle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Company classi fies all other assets as non·current. 

A liabi lity is current when: 

• It is expected to be sett led in a nonnal operating cycle. 
• It is hcld primarily for the purpose of trading. 
• [t is due to be settled withi n twelve months after the reporting period. or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabi lity for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non·current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acqui sition of assets for processing and their realization 
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twe lve mon ths as its operating cycle. 

2.2 .2 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and Initial Measurement 

Property. plant and equ ipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits 
assoc iated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured re liably. 
Property. plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost. 

Cost of asset includes 

a) Purchase price. net of any trade discount and rebates 
b) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met' 
c) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its 

working condition for the intended usc. 
d) Incidental expend iture during the construction period is capitali zed as part of the indirect 

construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental 
thereto. 

e) Present val ue of the estimated costs of disman tl ing & removing the items & restoring the site 
on wh ich it is localed if recognition c riteria are met. 

Freehold land is carried at hislOrical cosI. 

Subsequen t measurement 
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J rcon Gu rgaon Rewa ri Highway limited 
Notes to fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Cost of replacement. major inspection. repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-ternl 
construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met. 

Depreciation and useful lives 

Depreciation on propeny, plam and equipment. excluding freehold land is provided on straight line 
basis over the estimated uscfu l lives of the asscts as specified in schedule II of the Companies acl. 
2013. 

Particulars Uscfullives (Yea rs) 
Su i Id i n glflats residen t ia l/non-res ident ia I 60 
Plant and Machinery 8-15 
Survey instruments 10 
Computers 3-6 
Office Equipment's 5 - 10 
Furniture and fixtures 10 
Caravans. Camos and temoorarv shed 3-5 
Vehicles 8-10 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from properly, plant and equipment during the period IS 

charged on pro-rata basi s from/up to the date on which the asset is ava ilable for use/disposed. 

Each pan of an item of Propeny. Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the 
useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on perpctuallease is not amonized. 

If any Propeny plant and equipment acquired during the period. individua lly costing up to Rs. 5000/­
arc fully depreciated. by keeping Re. I as token value for identification. However. Mobile phones 
provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespecti ve of its value. 

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and 
adjusted prospective ly. if appropriate. "Ordinarily. the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the 
original cost of the asset" as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act. 2013 

Derecognition 

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gai n 
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net di sposa l 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when 
the asset is derecogn ized. 

2.2 .3 Capita l work in progress 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are 
carried at cost less accumulated impainnelllloss. ifany. 

2.2.4 Investm ent propert ies 

4iT:" Recogn ition and initia l measurement 
~.,.v-, 
~ 
~ . >. Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits assoc iated 

I~~ roperty will now to the company and the cost of propeny can be measu red reliably. 
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Jrcon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to financial sta tements ror the yea r ended Ma rch 31 , 2023 

Investment propeny com prises compl eted property. property under construction and property held 
under a lease thai is held 10 earn rental s or for capital appreciation or both. rather than for sa le in 
the ord inary course of bus iness or for use in prod uction or administrative fu nctions. In vestment 
propert ies are measured initial ly at cost. including transaction costs. 

Cost is the amount of cash o r cash equivalents paid or the fa ir val ue of other cons ideration given 
to acquire an asset at the time of its acq uisi tion or construction or, where applicable. the amount 
attributed to that asset when initially recognized in accordance with the specific requirements of 
other Ind AS. 

Subsequent measurement and depreciation 

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depre<:iation and accumulated impainnent 
loss. if any . Subsequent cost is added ifrecognition criteria is met. The Company depreciates building 
component of investment property on straight line bas is over 60 years from the date of origina l 
purc hase! complet ion of construction. Freehold land and property under construction is nO( 
depre<:iated. 

Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

The residual va lues. useful li ves and methods of deprec iation of investment property are reviewed 
al each fi nancial year end and adjustcd prospecti vely, if appropriate. 

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement. the fair value 
of investmen t property is disclosed in the notes. Fa ir value detennined based on an annual 
evaluation perfonned by an accredited externa l independent va luer applying valuation model 
acceptable intematjona lly. 

Derecognit ion 

Investment properties are derecogn ized either when they have been di sposed of or when they are 
pennanently withdrawn rrom use and no future economic benefit is expected from the ir disposal. 
The difrerence between the net di sposal proceeds if any and the carrying amou nt of the asset is 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of de recognit ion. 

2.2.5 Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably. Intangible assets acqui red separately arc measured on initial recogni tion at cost. The cost 
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capital ization criteria are met and d irectly attributable 
cost o f bringing the assel to its work ing condition for the intended use. Intemally generated 
intang ibles. excluding cap italised development costs. are not capitalised and the related expendi ture 
is reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expend iture is incurred. 
Intangible assets not ready fo r the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disc losed as 
'"Intangible assets underdevelopment" 

Subsequent measurement and amortization 
~1I,1( 

I'(wing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization e,WAR 

NOilJn..d ccumulated impaimlent losses. if any. Ir Software cost up to Rs. I Lakhs in eac h case a ~ 20<,;""1G> 

U.I:I,mo .ized in the period of purchase. by keeping Rs. I as token value for identification. §/ 
"'1 
~-;.) 
'~, 
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The cost of capita li zed software is amonized over a period 36 mon ths from the date of its 
acquisition. 

Amonization on addi tions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is charged on 
pro-rata basis from/up 10 the dale on which the asset is ava ilable fo r use/di sposed. 

Amortization methods. uscfullives and residual va lues are reviewed at each reponing period and 
adjusted prospectively. if appropriate. 

Derecognition 

An intangible asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its usc or disposa l. Gai ns or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangib le asset 
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and thc carrying amount of 
the asset and are recogn ized in the statement of profi t or [ass when the asset is de- recognized . 

2.2.6 Impairment of non-fin ancia l assets 

At each reponing date, the Company assesses whether there is an indicat ion that an asset may be 
impaired . If any indication exists. or when annua l impainnent testi ng for an asset is required. the 
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amou nt. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset or cash-generating unit' s (CGU) fair val ue less costs of disposal and its va lue in use. A 
recoverable amount is dctermined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
innows that are largely independent of those from o ther assets or groups of assets. When the carry ing 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is 
wrinen down to its recoverable amount and the impainnent loss. including impainnent on inventories 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

In assessi ng value in use. the estimated future cash flows are di scounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax di scou nt rate that reflects current market assessments of the time va lue of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. 

For assets excluding goodwill. an assessment is made at each reponing date to determine whether 
there is an indication that previously recogni zed irnpainnent losses no longer exi st or have decreased. 
If such an indication e.xists. the Company estimates the assets o r CGU's recoverable amount. A 
previously recognized impainnent loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
lIsed to detenn ine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impainnent loss was recognized. The 
reversal is limited so that the canying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount. 
nor exceed the canying amount that \\ould have been detemlined. net of depreciation. had no 
impainnent loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such a reversa l is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

2.2.7 In vento ries 

Inventories (including scrap) are val ued at the lower of cost and net rea[ izable va lue. Cost includes 
cost of purchase. cost o r conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present locat ion and condition. Cost is detennined on First in First out (FIFO) basis. et realizab[e 
va lue is the estimated se lling price in the ord inary course of business. less esti mated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

such time the outcome of the job cannot~~;;;;"" 
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reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure 10 the extent not wrinen o fT va lued at cost. 

In Cost Plus contracts. where the cost of all materials. spares and stores not reimbursable as per the 
terms of the contract is shown as inventory va lued as per (a) above. 

Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.2.8 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are 
transferred to the customer at an amount that renects the consideration to which the Company expects 
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

The Company recognize a fi nanc ial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor ("'N HA[") for the 
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services. 

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value i.e .. present value and subsequently al 
amortized cost usi ng the Effective Interest Rate (E IR) method. Under thi s method, financial assets 
will be increased for the financing element and reduced as and when money is received from grantor. 

The Company recogni zes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance 

services in accordance with Ind AS ·115 " Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

Company combi nes the two or more contrac ts entered into at or near the same time wit h the same 

customer and account for the contracts as a s ingle contract if contracts are negotiated as a package 

with a s ingle commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on 

the price or performance of the other contract or goods or services prom iscd in the contracts are 

single perfonnance obligation. 

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the pnce which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the perfonnance obligation and it excludes amounts collec ted on 

behalf of third parties i.e .. GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

The nature of the Company's contract gives rise to sevcrallypes of variable consideration including 

escalation and liquidated damages. 

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in 

the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significan t 

reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company estimates the 

amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the most likely amount method . 

Consequently. amounts allocated to a satisfied perfonnance obligation are recognized as revenue. or 

as a reduction o frevcnue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

~e company sat isfies a performance ob ligation and recognizes the revenue over time. ifany of the 
fo w'ing criteria is met: 

NOIDA k\ 
~ u,P,V 
~~ .. 

('liED A _ . 
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a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the ent ity's 
pcrfomlance as the entity perfonns. 

b) The entity's pcrfonnance creates or enhances an asset (for example. work in progress) that the 
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

c) The entity's perfOnllanCe does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the 
entity has an enforceable right to payment for perfonnance com pleted to date. 

For perfonnance obl igation satisfied over time. the revenue recognition is done by measuring the 
progress. using percentage completion methoo. towards complete satisfaction of perfonnance 
ob ligation. The progress is measured in tenns of a proportion of actual cost incurred to date, to the 
total estimated cost attributable to the perfonnance obligat ion. However. where the Company is not 
be able to reasonably measure the outcome of a perfonnance obligation. but the Company expects to 
recover the costs incurred in satisfy ing the pcrfonnance ob ligation. the Company recognize revenue 
only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of 
the perfonnance ob ligation. 

Perfonnance obligat ion is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where perfonnance 
ob ligation cannot be measured by input methoo. the output method is app lied. which fa ithfully 
depicts the Company's performance towards complete satisfact ion of the pcrfonnance obligation. 

Contract modifications are accounted for when addit ions. deletions or changes are approved either 
to the contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves 
assessing whether the serv ices added to the existing contract are di stinct and whether the pric ing is 
at the standalone se lling price . Services added that arc not di st inct are accounted for on a cumulative 
catchup basis. while those that are di stinct are accounted for prospective ly. ei ther as a separate 

contract. ifadditional services are priced at the standalone se lling price. or as a tennination of existing 
contract and creat ion of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

The accounting fo r modi fications of contracts invo lves assessing whether the services added to the 
ex isti ng contract are di stin ct and whether the pricing is at the standa lone sc lling price. Services added 
that are not disti nct are accounted for on a cumulati ve catch-up bas is. while those that are distinct are 
accounted for prospecti ve ly, either as a separate contract. if additional services are priced at the 

standa lone selling price. or as a tennination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not 
priced at the standalone selling price. 

a) Contract bala nces 

• Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services 
transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring gooos or services to a customer 
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due. a contract assct is recogni sed for 
the earned consideration that is cond iti onal 

• Trade rcce ivables: A receivab le represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that 
is unconditiona l (i.c .. only the passage of timc is required before payment of the consideration is 
due). 
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b) Other Operating Income 

Other operating income represents income earned from the activities incidental to busi ness and is 
recogni zed when perfonn ance obl igation is satisfied and right to rece ive the income is stabli shed as 
per tenus of contract. 

c) Other income 

• Dividend income is recognized when the right to rece ive payment is established. 
• Interest income is recognized using the Effecti ve Interest rate method . 
• Miscellaneous income is recognized when perfomlance ob ligation is sati sfied and the right to receive 

the income is established as per tenns of con tract. 

2.2.9 Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 
borrowi ng of funds. Borrowing costs directly anributable to the acq ui sition. construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substan tial period to get ready for its intended use or 
sale are capita li zed as pan of the cost of the asset. All other borrowi ng costs are charged to statement 
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost a lso includes exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adj ustment to the borrowing costs. 

2.2.10 Taxes 
a) Current income Tax 

Current income tax assets and liabil ities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance wi th relevant tax regu lations. Current tax is 
determined as the tax payab le in respect of taxab le income for the period and is computed in 
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss except to the exterll it re lates to items recognized outside profi t or loss in which case it is 
recognized outside profi t or loss (either in other com prehensive income or in equity). Current tax 
items are recognized in corre lation to the underlying transaction either in DC I or di rectly in equity. 
Managemen t periodically eva luates pos it ions taken in the tax return s wi th respect to situations in 
wh ich applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provis ions where 
appropriate. 

Current tax assets and tax liabiliti es are offset where the ent ity has a legally enforceab le ri gh t to 
offse t and intends ei ther to settle on a net basis. or to reali ze th e asset and settl e the liability 
simultaneollsly. 

b) Deferred Tn:\: 

Deferred tax is prov ided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and the ir carrying amounts for financia l reporti ng purposes at the reporting 
date. 

Deferred tax assets and liabil ities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realized or the li abil ity is sett led. based on tax rates (and tax la ws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enac ted at the reponing date. 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxab le profit will be available to allow all or part 
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that ruture taxable profit 
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a lega lly enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

2.2.11 Foreign Currency 

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statemen ts are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environmenl in which the group operates ('·the Functional currency"). The financial statements are 
presented in Indian rupees wh ich is also the Functional and presentation currency of the Group. 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transac tions are recorded in the functional currency. by applying the exchange rate 
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Foreign 
currency monetary items outstanding at the reporti ng date are converted to funct ional currency using 
the closing rate (Clos ing se lling rates for liabilit ies and closing buying rate for assets). Non-monetary 
items denominated in a Foreign currency which are carried at historical cost arc reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary 
items. or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those al which they were initially 
recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These 
exchange differences are presented in the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.2. 12 Employee benefit 

Short-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries. short tenn compensated absences. and Perfonnance Related Pay 
(P RP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the serv ice are classified as short-term 
employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit 
and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

Post-employment benefits 

The Post-employment benefits & other long-teml Employee Benefits are considered as per th e 
guidelines of Ircon International Li mited. the Holding Company. For the employees on the 
deputation from the Hold ing Company. And there are no post-employment benefits to the 
contractual employees. 
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and shOlH erm deposits. as defi ned above as they are cons idered an integral pan of rhe Company' s 
cash management. 

2.2.14 Divide nd 

Annual Di vidend distributio n to the Company's equi ty shareho lders is recogn ized as liability in the 

period in wh ich dividend is approved by the shareho lders. Any interim d ividend is recognized as a 

liabi lity on approval by the Board of DircclOrs. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend 

distribution. if an}'. is recogn ized directly in equity . 

2.2.15 Provis ions, contingent assets, and conti ngent liabilities 

a) Provisions 

Provis ions are recognized when the Company has a preselll obl igation ( lega l or construct ive) as a 
result of a past event. it is probable that an outfl ow of resources embodyi ng economic benefits wi ll 
be required to seu te the ob ligation and a re liable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obl igation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best est imate o fthc consideration required 
10 sen le the presenl o bl igation at the end of the reponi ng period. considering the ri sk and 
uncenainties surrounding the ob ligation. 

If the effect of the time va lue of money is material. provi sions are d iscounted using a curren t pre· 
tax rate that refl ects. when appropriate. the ri sks speci fi c to the li abi lity. When discounting is used. 
the increase in the prov ision due to the passagc of tim e is recogni sed as a finance COSI. 

b) Onerous contracts 

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavo idable costs (i .e .. the costs thaI the 
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obl igations under the con tract 
exceed the econom ic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a 
contract refl ect the teast net cost of exiting from the contract. which is the lower of the cost o f 
fulfilli ng it and any compensation or penalties aris ing from fai lure to fulfit il. If the Company has a 
contract that is onerous. the present ob ligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision. However. before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the 
Company recogni ses any impaimlent loss that has occurred o n assets ded icated to that contract. 

These estim ates are rev ie\\ed at eac h repon ing date and adjusted to reAect the current best 
esti mates. 

c) Contingent liabi lities 

Contingent liabilities arc di sclosed when there is II poss ible obligation or present obligations that 

may bu t probably will not. requi re an outno\\, of resources embodying economic benefits or the 

amount of such obligation can not be measured reliably. When there is possi ble obligation or a 

present ob ligation in respect o f which likelihood o f out now of resources embodying economic 

benefits is remote. no prov ision or disc losure is made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adj usted to renect the current best estimates. 
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2.2. 16 Leases 

The Company assesses at con tract inception whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. That is. if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a sin gle recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 
shorHenn leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make 

lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlyi ng assets. 

i) Righl-of-use assets 

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date 

the underlying asset is avai lable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any 

accumulated depreciation and impainnent losses. and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease 
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liab ilities recognised. initial 
direct costs incurred . and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives recei ved. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stra ight-line basi s over the shorter of 
the lease tenn and the estimated useful li ves of the assets. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost 

renects the exercise of a purchase option. depreciation is calcu lated using the estimated useful life 
of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impainnenl. 

ii) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease. the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the 

present va lue of lease payments to be made over the lease tenn. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives rece ivable. variable 

lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees. The lease paym ent's al so include the exercise price of Q purchase option 
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for tenninaling the 
lease. if the lease term renects the Com pany exercising the option to tenn;nate. Variable lease 

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are 
incurred to produce inven tories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the 

payment occurs. 

In calcu lating the present va lue of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing 
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to renect 

the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrying amount 
of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification. a change in the lease tenn, a change in 

the lease payments (e.g .. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate 
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ii i) Shorl term lease and leases of low va lue assets 

The Company applies the short-tenn lease recognition exemption to its short-tenn leases contracts 
including lease of residenti al premises and offices (i.e .. those leases that have a lease tenn of 12 
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies 

the lease of low-value assets recogn ition exemption lO leases of oflicc equipment that are 

considered to be low value. Lease payments on shon-tenn leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recogni sed as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

a) Compan y as a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not lransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an asset are classified as ope rati ng leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on 
a straight-line bas is over the lease tenns and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss 

due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease lenn on the 
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they 

are eamed. 

2.2.1 7 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial I iabi lilY or equity instrument of another ent ity. 

<I.) Financial assets 

Initial recogn ition and measurement 

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at 
fai r value through profit and loss). Transaction costs di rectly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

Subsequen t measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are c lassified in four categories: 

• Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost ifboth the fo llowing conditions are met : 

a. The asset is held wi thin a business model whose object ive is to hold assets for collecting 
contractua l cash Oows. and 
b. Contractual tenns of the asset give risc on specified dates to cash Oows that are sole ly 
payments of principal and interest (S PPI) on the principal amount outstand ing. 

After initia l measurement. such financia l assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (E IR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taki ng into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
J:: IR . The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 

"";'---"" om impainnent are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade 
, Pan iOth er receivables. 

U.P. 
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• Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

A 'debt instru ment' is classified as at the FVTOCI ifboth of the fo llowing criteria are met: 

a. The objecti ve of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows 
and se lling the financial assets. and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give ri se on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of princi pal and in terest (S PPI ) on the principal amoun t outstanding. 

Debt instrumellts included within the FVTOCI categol)' are measured in itially as we ll as at each 
reporting date at fai r val ue. Fair value movements are recogni zed in the other comprehensive 
income (OCI). I-Io\\cver, the Company recognizes interest income. impairment losses & 
reversa ls and fore ign exchange ga in or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition 
of the asset. cumulat ive gain or loss previollsly recognised in OCI is reclass ified from the equ ity 
to statemen t of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is 
reported as interest income in statemerll of profit and loss using the EI R method. 

• Debt instruments Ilt FVTPL 

FYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet 
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL is classified as at FYTPL. 

Debt instrumellls included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair va lue with al[ 
changes recogni zed in the statement of profi t and loss. 

• Eguif)' instruments 

All equ ity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are he ld for trading classi fied as at FYTPL. For all other equity instruments. the Company 
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes 
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The 
classi fication is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company dec ides to class ify an eq uity instrument as at FVTOCI. then all fair va lue 
changes on the instrument. excluding dividends. are recogn ized in the OCI. There is no recycling 
of the am ounts from OC I to statement of profit and loss. even on sa le of investment. However. 
the Company may transfer the cumu lative ga in or loss within I:q uity. 

Equity instruments incl uded within the FVTPL category are measu red at fair value with a[ 1 
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Im pairment of financia l assets 

ECL is the difference between all contractua l cash flows that are due to the Com pany in 
accordance with the contract and all th e cash flows that the ent ity expects to receive (i.e .. all 
cash shortfal[ s). di scounted at the original EIR. 

In accordance with Ind AS 109. the Comp..1ny applies expected credit loss (EC l ) model for 
measurement and recognition of impainnent loss on the following financial assets and credit 
risk exposure: 

~. Fi nancia[ assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans. debt 
'lV""+- • ~t:c~rities. deposi ts. trade receivables and bank balance 

t!l 01DA q: mancial assets that are debt in strumen ts and are measured as at FVTOC I 
* c. Cease receivab les under Ind AS 116 

.. } de receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financia l asset that re 
t ccft transactions that are with in the scope of Ind AS 115 

OAC e. Loan comm itments which are not measured as al FVTPL 
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f. Financia l guarantee contracts wh ich are nol measured as at FVTPL 

The Company fol lows -s imp li fied approach' for recognit ion of impairment loss allowance on: 

• Trade receivables or contract reven ue rece ivables ; and 
• All lease receivables resu lt ing from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

The application of simplifi ed approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit 
risk. Rather. it recognises im painnent loss allowance based on lifetime ECls at each reporting 
date, right from its initia l recogn ition . 

For recognition of impa irment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determi nes that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition . lf credit risk has not increased significantly. 12-month Ee l is used to provide fo r 
impairment loss. However, ifc redit risk has increased signi ficantly, lifetime ECl is used. If, in 
a subsequent period. cred it quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 
signi ficant increase in credit risk since init ial recognition, then the entity reverts to recogn ising 
impairment loss all owance based on 12-month EC L. 

lifet ime ECl are the expected credit losses resulting from al l possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a port ion of the lifetime ECl wh ich 
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporti ng date. 

ECL impairmen t loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as 
income! expense in the statement of profit and loss. Th is amount is reflected under the head 
'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various 
fi nanc ial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractua l revenue receivab les and lease 
rece ivab les: ECl is presented as an a llowance. i.e .. as an integral part of the measuremerll 
of those assets in thc balance sheet. The a llowance reduces the net carrying amount . Until 
the assct meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impainnem allowa nce from 
the gross carry ing amount. 

• Loan commitments and fi nanc ial guarantee contracts: EeL is presented as a prov ision in 
the balance sheet, i.e .. as a liabil ity. 

• Debt instruments measu red at FVTOC I: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI. the 
expected credit losses do not reducc the carry ing amount in the balance sheet. which 
remains at fair valuc. Instead. an amou nt equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset 
was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the 
'accumulated impairmcnt amount" 

The Company does not have any purchased or o riginated cred it- impa ired (POCl) fi nancial 
assets, i.e .. financial assets wh ich are credit impaired on purchase! origi nation. 
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The difference between the carrying amollnt and the amount of consideration received / 
receivable is recognized in the statemen t of profit and loss. 

b) Financialliabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabi lities are recogni sed initially at fai r value and. in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables. net of di rectly attributable transact ion costs. 

The Company's fi nancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans, and borrowings 
other financial liabilit ies etc. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of fi nancia l liabi lit ies depends on their classificat ion, as described below: 

• Financial liabilities at fair va lue through profit or loss 

The company has not designated any fi nancial liabilities at FVTPL. 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Loans, borrowings, trade pavables and OIher financia l liabil ities 

After initia l recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other fi nanc ial liab ilities are 
subseq uently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de·recogn ised as we ll as through the EIR 
amort isation process. Amortised cost is calcu lated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amort isation is included as finance costs in the statemenl of profit and loss. 

Dcrccogn it ion of fi nancial liabilities 

A financial liabil ity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is disc harged or 
cancel led or expires. When an ex isting fi nancial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different ten1lS. or the tenns of an ex isting liab ility are substantially 
modi fied. such an exc hange or modification is treated as the derecogn it ion of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liabi lity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

c) Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts Ihal req uire a payment 
to be made to re im burse the holder fo r a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fai ls to make 
a payment when due in accordance wi th the terms of a debt instrument. Financ ial guarantee 
contracts are recognized in itially as a liabil ity at fai r value. adj usted for transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guaran tee. Subsequently. the liabil ity is measured 
~t the higher of the amount of loss a llowance determi ned as per impaimlent req uirements of lnd 

,~ :s,~ 9 and the amount recognized less cumu lative amort izat ion. 
O:OA -. 

~ 

/I~i'\ un· $I ssification of financial assets 
1> .~ 
"?'l2f~D ACe e Company determines classificat ion of fi nancial assets and liabi lities on initial rec 

After initial recognition. no reclassificat ion IS made for fi nancial assets which a 
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instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments. a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. 
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to 
e.xternal panics. A change in the business model occurs when Ihe Company either begins or 
ceases to perfonn an activity that is significalll 10 its operations. If the Company reclassifies 
financial assets. it applies the reclassification prospect ively from thc reclassification date which 
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. 
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gai ns. losses (includ ing impa irment 
gains or losses) or imerest. 

e) Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset. and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable con tractua l legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 10 realise the assets and settle the li abilities 
sim 1Iltaneolisly. 

2.2 .18 Fair \'alue measureme nt 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

Fair va lue is the price that wou ld be rece ived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants al the measurement date. The fair va lue measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to se ll the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either: 

• In the principa l market for the asset or liability, o r 
• In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair va lue of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
wou ld use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in thei r economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measu rement of a non· financial asset takes into account a market participant' s ability to 
ge nerate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by se lling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses val uation techniques that are appropriate in the c ircumstances and for which 
suffic ient data are avai lable to measure fair value, maxi mising the use of relevant observable in puts 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised withi n the fair va lue hierarchy. described as follows. based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level I - Quoted (u nadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or li abilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve l input that is significant to the fair 

~ va lue measurement is direclly or indirectly observable 

~
~j:l..UK d %'\ Level 3 _ Va luatio.n tech niques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

:}V' p... .... \val ue measurement IS unobservable 
~ ~ 

"il(" \j .? F. :; ssets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a rec urring ~'l 
1;,~l: . 9m pany detennines whether transfers have occurred between leve ls in the hierarchy by :£~s~~~G',\ 

cRe ategorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value meas ~ient as a 'f:. ~ 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. ~:)1, ; i 

- '0/" ....... v..., ~ ?>" 
~, 0 
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External valuers are involved for valumion of significant assets and liabilities. if any. At each 
reporting dale. the Com pany ana lyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be remeasured or re·assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. 

For the purpose offair va lue disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature. characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair 
va lue hierarchy as exp lained above. 

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair val ue. Other fair val ue related disclosures are 
given in the relevant notes. 

2.2.19 No n - current asset held for sale 

2.2 .20 

2.2 .21 

2.2.22 

Non·current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held fo r sale when their carrying 
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is cons idered highly 
probable. The sale is considered highly probable on ly when the asset or disposal group is available 
for immediate sale in its present condi tion. it is unlikely that the sale wil l be withd rawn. and sale is 
expected within one year from the date of the classificat ion. Disposal groups classified as held for 
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to se ll. Property. plant and 
equipment, investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified 
as held for sale. Assets class ified as held for sale/distribution are presented separate ly in the balance 
sheet. 
If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 ·'Non·cu rrent Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non·current asset that ceases to be classified 
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as 
held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been 
classi fied as held for sa le. and Oi) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposa l group ceases 
to be classified as he ld for sa le. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and 
equipment. investment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the 
period when non·current assets he ld for sa le criteria are no longer met. 

Prior Pe riod Adjustment 

Errors/om issions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 

adjusted during the current year. if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 
of total operati ng revenue as per last audited financial statement oflhe Company. 

Openlting Segment 

Operating segmen ts are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reponing provided to the 
chief operating decision maker. Accordingly. the Company has identified one reporting segments 
i.e., Domestic. 

Earnings Per Share 

In detenn ining basic earnings per share, the com pany cons iders the net profit attributable to equity 
shareholders. The number of shares used in computin g basic earn ings per share is the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share. 
the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adj usted for the effect of all dilutive potent ial equity shares. 

~-:-7:'" 

2 ~~lL nJF\cant accounting estimates and judgments 
~~ . 

~O\~e !ti)nates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are cominuo ted by 
U.'ihe qrt pany and are based on historical experience and various other assu \B-04It~ tors 

D""I'~'"'1..o i ."'- 1I1g expectations of future events). that the Company believes to be ~ab[e uM the 
'rl'~ .. 0 ;j .,. ... '< 

<:/?EDf..Cv C)"=! ~,.. 

-to~" ...... 1 
00-/ 0.'" 
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ex isting ci rcumstances. The said est imates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the 
reporting date. or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions 
exist ing as at the reporti ng date. Although the Com pany regularly assesses these estimates. actua l 
results could differ materially from thcse estimates - even if the assumpt ions underlying such 
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results ditTer from historica l experience or other 
assumptions do not turn out to be substantia lly acc urate. The changes in estimates are recogni zed in 
the financ ial statements in the period in which they become known. 

The key assumptions concern ing the future and other key sources of estimat ion uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a materia l adj ust ment to the carry ing amounts 
of assets and liabilities withi n the next financial year, are described be low. Actua l results cou ld differ 
from these est imates. 

a. Allowances for uncollected trade rece ivables 

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverab le amount are based on ageing of the receivab les 
balances and historical experiences. Ind ivid ual trade receivables are wrinen off when management 
deems not be colle<:tible. 

b. Defined benefi t plans 

The costs of post-retirement benefit obl igation are determined using actuarial valuations by IrcOI1 
Internationa l Limited. An actuarial valuation invo lves making various assumptions that may differ 
from actual developments in the future. These include the deteml ination of the discount rate, future 
salary increase. mortality rates and fu ture pension increases. Due to the complex ities invo lved in 
the valuat ion and its long-tenn nature. a de fi ned benefit obligation is highly sens itive to changes in 
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

c. Con tingencies 

In the norma l course of business, contingent liab ilities may arise from litigation and othe r cla ims 
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on 
a ll available facts and circ umstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify re liably 
and such obligations are treated as con tingent liabi lities and disclosed in notes Although there can 
be no assurance of the fina l outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved. it is 
not expected that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial pos ition of 
probabili ty. 

d. Impairment of fi nancial assets 

The impainnent provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in maki ng these assumptions and selecting the 
inputs to the impai nnent calculat ion .. based on the Company ' s past history. exist ing market 
cond itions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reponing period. 

c. Taxes 

I ex ist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulat ions. changes in tax 
the amount and timi ng of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences 

the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions. 
I future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The CC~P",lY 

prov isions. based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such D~;;;~~~:~~~! 
fac tors. such as experience of previous tax audits and 1 • i '11;~;:;~~~~ 

by the taxable entity and the responsi ble ta .... authority. Such di fTer"ence,; 0 : 
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may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the condit ions prevailing in the respective 
domic ile of the companies. 

Deferred tax assets are recogn ized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit wi ll be available against which the losses can be util ised. Significant management judgement 
is requ ired to determi ne the amoun t of deferred tax assets that can be recognised. based upon the 
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with futu re tax planning strategies. 

f. lmpainnem of non financial assets 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amou nt which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
The fair val ue less costs of disposal calculation is based on avai lable data from binding sa les 
transactions, conducted at arnl"s length. for si milar assets or observable market prices less 
incrementa l costs for disposi ng of the asset. The va lue in lise calculation is based on a DCF model. 

g. Non-current asset held for sale 

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is availab le 
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn. and sale is 
expected within one year from the date of the classificat ion. 

h. Leases - Estimating the incrementa l borrowi ng rate 

The Company cannot readily detennine the interest rate implic it in the lease, therefore, it uses its 
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 
the Com pany would have to pay to borrow over a sim ilar tenn, and with a similar sec urity, the 
fu nds necessary to obtain an asset ofa similar val ue to the right-of-use asset in a sim ilar economic 
environment. 

Determining the lease tenn of contracts with renewal and tenn ination options - Company as lessee 

The Company detemlines the lease tenn as the non-cancellable tenn of the lease. together with any 
pe riods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonab ly certain to be exercised, or any 
periods covered by an option to termi nate the lease, if it is reasonably ccnain not 10 be exercised. 

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and term inat ion options. The Company 
app lies judgement in evaluat ing whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 
option to renew or tenninate the lease. That is. it considers al l relevant factors that create an 
economic incent ive for it to exercise either the renewa l or tenn ination. After the commencement 
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 
circumstances that is within its control and affects its abi lity to exercise or not to exercise the option 
to renew or to terminate (e.g .. construct ion of significant leasehold improvemen ts or signi ficant 
customizat ion to the leased asset). 

1. Reven ue recognition 
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materially positive or negative change to underlying profitability and cash flow. 

Esti mates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract : 

• Detennination o f stage of completion 
• Estimation of project completion date 
• Provisions for foreseeable loses 
• Estimated tota l revenues and estimated total costs to com pletion. including claims and 

variations. 

These are reviews at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recogni zed by reference to the stage of completion of 
the contract activity at the end o f reporting period. measured based on proportion o f contract costs 
incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs. where this 
would not be representative o f stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are 
included to the extent that amount can be measured reliably. and receipt is considered probab le. 
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. the expected loss is 
recognized as an expense immediately. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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• [sero" ao;cQUnt an: rtSl n,l.;U pnmanl~ on account of balan,,; held tOr usc In prOJ~'l;1 a:;; requITed ITl Ihe Sen ICC ConcesSIOn A~remk:nl ,:ntcroo b~ Ihe 
compall~ II Ilh the NaHQnul! Ilghlla) ;\ulhufll> of Indl3 Dated 20 01 2020 

if~1 

57



[rcun GurgllUIl H.t" ~ri IlIgh"II,- Lilllited 
C [:'" :-l' "530'.1[) U020GO IJ 7 .. 9 .. 1 
,~ll!tS III finlillciMI Slyl rmrn ls fur Iht ~ far rndfd 3 lSI \I.rth. 2023 

(All amounts In INH. Lal..hs excCJ?I Shan: dala and unlo:ss QlhI:n'lse ~alcd) 

5.3 Olhn Currrni FinMnciMIs ,\ SSrb 

, 

7 

I'M rlicuL M(S 

To Others 
Contract ,\ ~sf ls 

Billable rC'!'enue bUI nOi due 

COO5truCliOn "on. III progrc:ss IAt Realisable Value) 
Interest accrued but not due 

RelC11 l100 MOlle) "olhlleld b~ chenl 

Cur rrnilin \ Sstls( " rl) 

l'art iculMrs 

Ad"ance ta~ INct orPrO~ ISlon for Ta~) 

O lhrr Currrnl ,\ SStb 

Particulars 

Balances ... IIh (e'<:IlUC authorilies 

-Ci(l.:xls and servlcc la>; (NeW 

i'n:pald cxpcn s~-s 

Staff loan & adl ancc:s 

-includlllg Rs 36 1 6 1 lakh Goods and Sen-ICt lax paId on athallCC reeC1> cd from NI IAI 

TOIMI 

TolMI 

T ula l 

ilion/iii 

hilt 31s1 
\hrch.2023 

1.18221 

6.0..750 
,01 

LOIJ 01 

8.2.(8.73 

\ UI J ist 
\larfh , 2023 

11890 

11 8,90 

\ s It Jisl 
\ hrrh,2023 

1.98754 
3609 

009 

2,023.i2 

Asal Jisl 
\breh. 10n 

2,480 .. 6 

2"(81J"(6 

\ s at J I~I 

\IUfh,2022 

\ SM I J isl 
\ hrch,211n 

18~ 88 

87' 

198.67 
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Ireon Gu rgaon Rt .. u i lI igh .. ay Limil r tl 

CI~ :-1" .l5J!I9IlU020GOIJ 7.19.1 1 

Naln 10 financial , 11I1 ( l1Itnl~ for Iht ~' f8r tntlttl JI S! ,\Iarch . 20B 
(,\11 amounts m INIt Lal..hs ewept shar.: data and unless OIhem IS( stated) 

18 Fair Va lu t In ,~lrumfnIS 

t il Caltgo r~' .. be ~ l lISsiliU lion of Fin ~ n~ia ll n)\rUlllenu 

FmallClallti5e1S and finanClalhablhll(S af"( mtltiurcd al faIr \alllt' IIllhcsc financial Slatcmelll and an: grouped mto Ihree lc\'ds ora 
fair \alll( h lerar~h) The Ihrce Lel'cls arc detlned ba,cd on the ubs('rnhl llt~ of significant mpu ts to the mca:.ur~'nl'1t. a~ follO\I' 

Le\d I Quoted prices iunadJusted) m actll c markets for Identical assets ur llabllilles 

Leld 2 [npulS OIh&:r than quOted prices mcluded II ,th,n Lcvci I thai an: OOSCr'l able for the aSSCI or Ilablll l}. either dlr(Cll~ or 
LClel J Unobservable mput~ for th.: a.;sel or Imbll,ty 

Tht urn in!! \"a lun a nd f. ir I .luts of finan cia l ins trumtnlli hI u ltforits as a l JIsI \la rch ~iPJ art as follo" li' . · - -
Particula rs 

Fina ncia l As~1S a t \mnrtiu d C Oil 

(I) Tr.:lde Rece1\'mble 

Iii) Cash and cash cqlll~alcnts 

(111) Olher current tinanClal~ assets 

Fina nd MI Lillhililiu at Altlor l iu ll Cos t 

(I. BorlO"mg 
(Ii ) Trade pa}ables 

(III) Olher Current finaocml liabilities 

) Cash and cash cllulnlentS 
Other current financial> assets 

I """,,1, 11 U~ biJilin a l ,\lI1o rliu d C~t 

Other Cum:nI iinancral lIablhlles 

, 

Car~'in~ u lu t 

.j55.j 97 

'H839 
8.2487J 

1.J.752.09 

020 
.\.20.\5-1 

S77 28 
.\. 82.02 

J 12 62 

010 
877 63 

00)' 

Fair V. tue 
Ltl"rl- I .cn l-2 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- · 
· · 
· · 
- -

LCH -

.I .SS.j 97 
Q.\!I 39 

8.2487J 
IJ. 5 2.09 

020 
.\.20.\ 5.j 

577 18 
.j ,7~2.112 

J 12 62 
2.480.46 

010 
877 63 

00)-0 

m;magcm.:nl I ' I' currenl . II I' apprllX llnate 

thelf car!) mg amounlS larscl~ due ro the short-term maturities rhes<: mstruments The faIr ~alue of the financial asSdS and 
113blhllcs IS mcluded al the amount at "h,ch the InStrumal! ~oultllx nchanged III a currenllfllnsaCI,on bet\leen \1 Illmg partlCS 

1'1 C.pir. 1 "ana1!~ ln enl 

EIIUII) ~harc capllal anll other equlI) afe conSidered for the purpos.: of compan} capital management The compan} manages Its 
Cajllial so as 10 safeguard ItS ablht) to ~'Ontinuc as a gOing conccrn and 10 opllnllSl: returns to sharcholder:. Th.: capital Siructur.: of the 

compan~ I~ bas.:d on manager .... :Tlfs Judgement of Its stratcglc and da)·ro-da) nceds ",th a focus on tOtal cqult) SO as to malntam 
ITI~O:SIOf, creditors and mil1h1 cOilfidencc The management and the Board ofDIfl:ctOfs mollllOf the return OIl caplllli The Group ilia} 
lakc appropriate Steps III order to mallllalll . or Ifncco:ssar) adjust. It~ capital structure 

20 Finan fl ~1 risk "' ~ n~l!fm r nl 

The Con'pan}'s :ll.11~lIles expose 1I (0 a \arlet~ oflinanclal riSks credll rlsklnleres t ratc rlsl.. WId liquldlt~ 1151.. Thc Compan) ·s fISk 
management IS carried OUt b) Finance &. Accounts dC'panmelll und,'r policlCS approlcd b} the Board of DIII:etors The Board 
supcn I S~"S o\'cml~ 'm71l1, as .. cll as pohcl."S covering speCific areas, such as liqUId,,) rl sl:: 

~~ 'C! 
.:r .. 
'" '" .. 
o +., 0" 

>9"fREO p..~(.; 
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Inon GurgMun It~w~ri lI igh\\'~ y Limited 
C I" :.1' 453ij91l1.2020GO 137.& 0).& I 
Notu tu financilll s t attm~nu rvr tht ~-nr r ndtd 31 S! 'Ia reh, 20ll 
(All lilll()Unts on INR Lakhs exc~1I1 share dJla and unlt'S5 Glhenl lSI: stUl~d) 

II Liquidil} risk 
I.iquldlt~ flS],: IS Ih.: "3],: that the Coon pan} II III encounter dlffi cult~ on medlllg the obhgatlOllS as>OClated II nh Its finanCial hablhtles 
tlmt are selllcd b} ddIV~""'IIJ!, cash or another fin311dal asset The Compau) 's approach to managll1 g hqU1dn~ IS 10 ensure, as Ilu as 
posslble_ thulII \I,ll hOI'c sutliClenl hql,lldlt) to mc:.;t ,ts hablht,,:s \lh.:n tht) are due. und~..,. both normal and Slress.:d cond'llOl1S. 
\I ,thout Incurrnll/. unacceptable losses or rISking damaI/-C 10 the Compan} ·s reputahOft 

The table belo\\' prOI·,d " detail" regardm!! tile s 'gn,ficalll final1l;'all lab, ln, 'S W' as 1:>.:10\1 " > , , 
"a rlitular, -\5 al 3 hi \l arth 20B 

I"nbill rd < I\'n r >\ Yrar TOlal 
Ilorroll Ing - - 020 020 
Trooe Pa)able - 4 .204 54 - 4.204 54 
Other Fmanclal L,aMlt) - 577 28 - 57128 

TOlal - 4,78 1.82 0,20 4,782.02 

" I rlitulan .'\s I I 3 lSI 'Iarth 2022 
l"nbilltd < , \ ' ta r > 1 ' ·nr Total 

Borroll inll - - 020 020 
Tradc Pa}ablc 836 59 '"" - 817 6] 
Oth" FmwlI;lal I lal:"ht) - o ().I - o ().I 

Total lU6.59 ,&1.011 0.20 877.87 

h) ' '-rbl It isk 

Market risk IS the fISk that tht fair value of future cash fl ows of a finan~lal mstroments II 111 nu~tuate b(l,:allSe o f f;hangcs m markel 
prlel'S Mark.:t rosk oompnscs Foreign curr~nq r"k IHld Interest rate ns!.: Finar!c lal Instrum.:nts affect.:d b) market Tis!.: Indudes 
borrOWings. trooe rn:elvables. trade pa~ able and OIher non d"I,·all,'e financIal InstrumentS 

il lnttrtsl Itatt Risk 
Inlcrest ratc nsk IS the n~k that the fair lalue of future cash ilows of a fmanClal mstrul1lcnts Will iluctuatc because of change m 
market mterest rate The Compan) IS manaI/-CS mterest rate fiSk accourdancf.: II"I\h the companlcs pollf.:le;; and lIS!.: obJc.:t,,·es 
FlllaJltl aJ mStruments atTl~lcd b) InterCSt rate fisk dl""\lOSlts \11th banks Interest rate fisk on thc:sc fin;lrIClal IflSlruments are 'a) 10\1 
as mterest rat.: ,s "xed for the perIod of lin3nclal Instnlnll'11\S Also conlpan~ docs nOl halC an~ matenal mterest n s ~ on 
10 anfborrOll IIIgs as loall disbursement amoum IS not matenal 

ii) Fortign Currenty Misk 
s"'c~ COInp;.,,} docs 1101 ha,·" al1~ IrWIS""UOII ,n fore.s" ,,"rrcnq hence coonpan) does nOi 113\'" all) rnr~ l i" currene} risk 

tl Crtdil It isk 
The Compan) ·5 deals" IIh one customer I e Nallonal IIlghlla) ,'utl>orll) of ll11da Accordlllgl ~ . the Compan~ ·s customer credll risk 
I~ low General pa}ment terms IIIdude IlIobll,satlOl1 Ud\3nce. pa)l1Ients on Illlicston achl~cment lind c.:nmn retention mont} 10 be 
released at the end of the prOJl:e1. The Compan~ has a detailed rellell mechamsm of ol'crduc customer rl'tClvahks at 'WIOUS levels 
II Ithlll organIsation to cnsure proper atientlOO and focus for reallsatton 

List or finMndal .nSfIS un which trrdlt risk 1I 111)liubk 

\ s lit 31st As a l 3 1st 
l'lrl icu.rs 'hortb 2023 \lanh 21J22 
(I) Traoc Reccl\abk ,'.55-197 -
(II ) Cash and cash eqUivalent.. 9-18 39 11262 
(111 1 Other curr.:nt finaJlCI:d s a5SCts 8,24873 2.-180 -16 

Total 13.752.09 2.593.08 , - - " " Note As p" Past Expcncn.c 01 th~ managemC:lll. nonc of abolc asSCtS required al1O\lance of IIfClIIIlC" e" ]l"I:~ tcd ~ r~dlt loss 
a~cordlOgl) rclcI ant dl5cll))ure not prOI'ld~'d 
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• 

[,..,un Gurr.aon K~"' MrllHgh"II )' Umil.d 
C I'\':- I "SJI)9DI.2111OGOIJH9~ 1 
:O;otts 10 financial ~t~ lf'''.''lS for thl' ~'nr rndn! Jhl \l ar~k. lOU 
(Alilimoun~ on INR La~h5 ... wept 5h~rr datl and unlns l)lher""~ 51ale'dl 

211 R.,' ·cnll. 

" . l)i"'l:,r~.lion of Rf'\fnllt 
Sci 01.11 bd(ll'o ,,[he d,sasgregallon oflhe Compa") 's I't"mue fron. rontf'KiS .. ull tU!lornt."f'S In[o (lpI.'f3.lIng ggrnenl and I)pl' ofprodUO:I or 
sen Ice~ 

Tn'" "rf'rooMd 
o r ~n';(6 

for Ihe " ur ."tln l \lall:h JI. lOB 

\lr lhod for tMMjurin~ 
pl'rrOrttWlnff obli~lIlitln 

011111111 

0111 •• Knrnn. 
TOlal .~ pu .!o1.' ...... "1 

"f J'rofil lind I~ 

~m."1 Hr1MJrtinl!, 

1)(11"01" foml:n;;~T~'~"~'~~ ;'~"~';'~'~'~"~'~'~""~;;;';" ;';""'~;;;;;;;;;::::::~~HE lS.7U 37 15,74837 15.74837 15 7U 37 
15,748 37 !S.NS3715,74837 [S,rtS37 

I n::'-mu~ re<.:O&I1Is.eJ under INDASi15 duron, thc }ear. Ks 15,748 37 lakhs I§ recogl1l~ o'er a penod ofume 

T)pl'"rf'rllchKI 
orMn'~ 

Fur tilt \ ' .... r I'ntl.d 'br~h JI . 2022 

\l r lhod for nM:nll rill~ 

.,.,.fo",,,,,,('r ubli~.lion 

OUlp .. 1 

Otht. Rnrau" 
Tolal •• .,.,. Sta lnnrnl 

o f I'roti l Mild Lo .. 
1St'g"M:1I1 Krpo.lillg 

;;I";"~~~'"~;,FO"d!lIl;;:.;T~'~"~I ~;;I;";';"~'~" ~'~"""~;';';";"~';;;;;;;~::====~8t 2,"6752 H67 52 2.~67 52 H6752 
246752 246752 :-"6752 2 467 32 

• Total re'cnut' recogolsed und~r lNOASi15 durlllB Ih~ }eJI, Rs 2."67 S~ lakhs IS rC\:ogmsed over J penod of time 

T, la l 

H, COll inn Halallc ... 

l'ul;cul",,,. 
CIHlIrXI ASSt'lS 

ClHllnao.:l L."bihhd 
Trade Rcce,nble 

FO.11>c' \ U' [ lIdnl 
J Ist 'I.rch, 2i1lJ 

7,22971 
.1,37500 
~ ,S5" 97 

For Ihr ""at tlldnl 
J I , I 'lar.-h, 2022 

,) Trade r~e1\'abll!S are oon-mlerOSI ~ann& aoo b<:longs 10 Nal lonal Hlghwa)' AUlhonly of ind.a (NHAi) GClll'l1ll pa)"nenl lenns mdude 

mob,hsat,on ad"allCe. Pa)~ol 00 m,l~tOM ach'~\'mtc:ol 15 Days CrNII penod i"CIl "'"h each ,"")lelna 

"I Conlnao.:l ASSl.:IS are rt'C0il1lsed O\ef lhe penod In ",h,ch sen' Ices are pcrfOl~d 10 n:prnc111 Ihe Compam's nghl 10 conSidernllon III c~change 
for goods or !len'led transferred 10 lhoe ClLSll)lner II Indudes balances due frOIll C"Slomo:rs under consm",uon C<In1fllclS Ihal anse whCfl Ih" 
COOlpan) rCCCI'es pa\rnenlS from CILS.1IIIl<"rS as per.rnru of lhoe COOIIXIS 1Io"",,\'er Ille fC"COIIC .s recOSl',se;j O\<!f .he penod Uool:! IIlpul method 
An) amounl rr~,,,,,~I} re<:OW"sed as:l Conlract as$CI IS re<:1<ls5.fi...J1O InwJe rt'Cc .. 'lIbIel; "" S;)lI sr"",lIon oflloc Condilion :lU""hnl, e f" ...... : sen'tee 
"hlch IS n((;CS5OU) 10 ach'CH Ihe biltlna mile5iOlle 

\1unnlrn';n co n. "'CI I\ ~S~I S durinl.ht ~'nr 

COnlrxl as5<:1 al the ~nd of lhe ,ear 

Fur Ihr \ nr f: ndnl 
J ht \11 ...:h. 20lJ 

2 ~80"6 

~ , U'),25 

Furtht \ 'ur tndrd 
Jh, '11...:11, lOll 

I~ 93 
2," 8046 
1,"67,5) 

For Ihe ,ear 20~2-13 and 2021-11 - There hils bc'en a ncllncfC;l5C ofRs 4 ,U9 25 ukhs and Rs 2"67 53 takbs resp:cc\l,-d\ Increase In Coot"'CI 

DS$rtS are mallll) due to n:cognllHln ofRe\cn"" b.lsed on mplll mclhod ",h= bills r..- ",or~ done are basal on ""hlcleml:m of miles lone 

IU\ Conlr.>el hab,huel; fciallna 10 construelloo conltlClS an: NI3nces due 10 (U>\IH1OCrs. IhcSC' aflse "hen a p;tIhcuJ;or mikSlOO. pa)mo:nl c~ceeds 

lIoe r<",-woe re<:ogn'se;l 10 ..blc under the .nput mclhod and "'hanccc fCC<:l'·.,j In !oroa lerm Construellon COIIlrlIClS n., amounl of Ad\'11l1Ce rece"ed 
&CIS adJuSled O\C'I' IfIr COO5ln.o<.:IIon penod lIS and. "h<:r\ln\OIClOg 15 made 10 th" CUSlomrr 

\Io,'flt",n.ln Cllnlnl.'l Lh,bililres durin!/, Ihc ~'ur 

Contracl L.abihlles althe BealOmll!! o(the )car 
Adnoce rece" ed from (Uslonler 

For the Yu r t:lldrd 
Jisl :\b ...:h. 2un 

uoooo 
(1.12500) 

J .J 75.00 

.... r Ihe Yur t:nd"d 
JIs! ,\b ...:h . 2U22 
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I",,,,, GU rJaon R ... nri 1I;~ h .. -. ) U .. ,it'" 
CI' ;. ' ·4511)9I>1..l01OGOIJ H?4 1 
;, 'ules HI finM"d~1 ~t~tton.,nB for tilt ~'ur tlld<"ll Jisl \bn:h. lOB 

tAli amountS ,n INR !.alhs f .W-ep! share data and unless odx: ..... ',~ slal~) 

C. Ctl)1 1(1 (lIIIMi .. the con lrA~ 1 

Amoonl recognl$Cd as assn as ~l J I~I March. 20:3 IS NlltA! it J lSI Mardi. 202: NIII 
Amount ofamon'S<lllon ro;oSnosN In Ih.c Sl.;ttcmmt of ",ofil and loss duronllhc ye<>r IS NotiFY 2021-22 1'>,', 

o . PHr(lrm~"cc oblig Mliun 

Infonnalloo aboullhc. C001fl3ny"S pen{)r""'nf;c obhpuons ~ tumm;ln5Cd bdo" 
Tho' Il"llrtSacl,OI1 pnee allocated to lhe mT\.;unlnv. pt"ffonnar>« ob"!~lIons lunSilu5fie-d or fIiImall) unsatIsfied) as al J lSi March ar~. a5 foU""s 

Fnr ,bt Yrar tndcd .... rthr Yur lnded 
I'~rtkwlu~ JI." \I an:h . 20B Jist 'tuell. ZIJ2Z 

Wllhln~Yea. 58,01739 15.1.4837 
Mor~ than I Icar'$ 
TOII I 

r.. Cloan~r in \ rrou'liint l:Slitll<>la I'C"blnllo Iht Rr<"c.II,r Reco,""'Ilon: 

2H67 18 
1IJ,5114.57 

Compan) has used the cost locunc'<l ~s mput 10 measure the pro~ towards salishlClloo of pl:rfOfmance ubhgallon due to tht uocertalnl) In 
measunng !he perfonnaoce obhgauoo of COfISUUf;UOfl of hlgJm;t} rood . revenue WliS r«og.nISe<,! 10 Ihe e~lem of cost ,ocuiTe<l up 10 31 03 2022 
Coosodo:nng the sll~ual construcuon progrC$S of tho: pr",<'(I. Manag~t ha.o; 00" e,.,.luau,d COSI & re'~nuc. po:'I"'oo and ,"eluded Ihe profil 
m3rlm In It.. n:'cnuc In the )tJr endro 31 OJ ~O~J USing cumulall\C catcllup adjusunenl. Amounl of fe,,,,,,,,,, rn:"Iln.$C'd from lhe P<'rfOl1T\3rote 
obligalltll' satisfied In prc''IOUS )'cars IS 24 80 crorC 10 13 Crorel Funher, "npact 00 III. 11\(),'emem of COfII""1 ass",- IS as under 

I ) Si, nmc.nl chMII ~1\:S in Ih, cunlnct n~.,b b~l~ncn durinll lh., ~,.,~ r ~rf .' fo lio,", : 

L ont"""l As",",s balance al lhe 1J<,glnnln& Oflllc year 
Tronsfon from lhc conlraclllS~U recognl7.ed al the Ixilnnlng of tile }e¥ 10 receivables 

Rc\'enuc n:cogmntl dunna: tile IC¥ 10 be tnHMCC'Ii 
Chang..s as a re!iu lt of eumulamc ealch-up adj usln..:nl _nSlIlg fron! change In o:5umatcS 
Contt1ll:l Assets balano.:e 31 the clld Of lhc lear 

211.1 ~"icr C .. ncn~lun An'lIngffIKnh 

J h l \1,...d' . 2022 
2.48046 

12.5bbJb) 

7.22971 
&591 

7,22<171 

Pubhc 10 p"'''le SC .... ,ce COI";CMlon alT1lngcmcnlS arc recorded ,n accordan<e "Ith Appcndt.x "0"- SC .... ,CC ConcesSion Al1lInKCmel1tS (lnd ,\S-
11 SI APP<"'d,~ '·0- 15 applicable If 

II I Tho: Grn.nlor ,oocrob or r<'Kulates ",h,eh seT\1C<'li Ihe op<:rn.lOr should PfO'lde " nh the Infraslruo;mn:, to "hom II mt.rSl pro~ldo: Ihc'm, and.1 
"hal pnce, and 

b) The Gramor COOlrols- IhrOl.lgh oWnersh ,p. benefi"al enullcmem. or OIhcrI"sc- an~ Significant I'l'SlduallnlereSl '" Ihe tnfraslruclur~ at Ihe end 
of the 1.:nt1 of lhe arrangcmc:m. 

If bOIlI of lho.: abo,c CondUIOfiS an: md slmuttln<'OU!iI), a finano.:laJ as.sct '5 rec08nl7.cd to the e'l\enl !hal (he op<:rn.U)r has U1 UOCondlU0I131 
COrItractual flahl t.l r<xc"e cash or other finanCial a55Ct from or actlie dlscrcuoo of lhe Grantor for th~ scr\'1ce 

ThcsI. iinaocl.I asscu ~ ,n,uall} recOjlllIl<.'d at coo, "h,eh ,5 undcmood as (he fa" ..:I.lue of the SCrllee pro\ldcd plus Oiht,'f dlrecl COSIS dlreclll 
allnb\ltlbk 10 the ope<all00 The-. an: 111m stlled aI amortl~ coo a(lh.: end of each finan<:lal )cJr 

lreon Gurgaon II.c"'1!rt HlgJ'''ll~ LIII"tN ,IGRHL) ~s entered InlO seT\lce concesSloo alT1lnsC'ment w,lh Nahooal Hlsh"'1I) Authont) of India 
(Nlt"l I daled l011l Jan"" .... ~O!I In tcrms of "h,,11 NItA! lihe grantor! lIa~ aUlhonzN Ihe compan\, ror upgr~dauon "f Ou,&,"on I'alaud, Rewa" 
S«UOfI ofNH-lS~W from "m 0 00 lO Km U 87 (design length 46 II km\:u. f.....tcr IOOte on II) bnd annUl" mo.ie un..1", Bhanumala Parl)Ojana 
In Ille Slate of 1I ..... ana In IcnTIS orlhe said a~1 IGRIIL has an obhaatlon 10 complete COfISItUCUon oflhe PIlIJCCI of four sn hlllng rood 
The Ptujcct IS under H~b"d Annun~ Mood 

The ConcC$SIOfi pc:nod shall b.: 17 )C';JfS commencll1& from lhe appo,nled dale At the cnd of lhe Conces5'011 pc:nod, the assets ",II he Iran5fclTe,j 
back 10 Nallonal IIIJh"1I)' AUlhonl) o([nd,a (NIIAI) 

In cas.: of malenal breach In lenus of ll&,cemem Ihe NIIAI and Compam ha'"C' rtJht to t~n"'natc the agr.:.:mcnl If cho!) an: not 3hle to curC' Ihe 
e .... :"1 of default ,n ac,ordan<;c w!lh such agreement 

The Com~ has n:o:ognlse.J rC\~nuc ofRs 15, 7~8 37 Lakhs & Profil ofRs 367 B Lakhs for lhe )c;U- ended 31s1 Marc;h ~OB on COfl§trucIIOfi 0( 

Rood under SC '\ as per Ind AS • 115 rdalCd 10 '" Re'"cnue from CUStomers The eompan~ has rn:0i"17.-d rn:e,..,.hk under sen ICe ConcC§!I10fi 
lln :lnllcmen! and shown under OIhcr FinanCial '<lITenl AsseIS " hlch II " 'III r<xe"-c as pl:r terms of the eOUlmet based on Ille complellon of 
mlk5lone. lIS OIl 1151 March 2023 
Oi<;closu" in It""" or '\ I'IM'nd;~ Il or Ind \s II ~ 

In I~""'S of 11M: d.sclosure rC'qUlred III AppendiX D '" Ind AS _115 R"'CllUO: from CUSI<.>meo, as notified In llIe ComP;Ulles IlndlJn Accounllng 
Siandard) rule$ 2016. the amoounl conslden:d '" the ("'lnetai Slal~'I11cnts up 10 Ihe hab""c sheet dJIC ~rC' as follows · 
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heon Gurlt:lun Itf ... ~rllIIgln ... )' lJml~ed 
( . 1':-1' ~5J09nLltlll)GOB7~9~ I 
" 01.,. In O"~lOCi:l1 .~alnrOCC" 15 fo r ~he ~'fn nodrt! JI ) I \lnth. 20B 
IAII amount!; In INR Lakhs c~Cepl $h",,.., dale and unless Olt.cn.lk' s~aledl 

"wegale amoun~ of cose locWTed 
Amounl 01 :llhanee rti:CI\"<'I! from Chent i""l) 
Amount of"'l~nIlOll II) Chent 

!'rofil ( Loss) recogms<d dunng Ih~ )car lor c"change 01 C{)IlSlruClion i\erYI,e for a finane.al 
~~, 

Gr~ amount due from Client fOl COOlr.ICi WOIb 

2'1 (>rIa;l, or du~ Iu \licru and SmaU Enlerprises u deOnrt! undrr Iht \IS \IEIl ,\tl. 2006 

l' l rtitular< 
a) The jlflrlClpal :lmI>Um and Ihc ,m<'feSI due Ihereon remaining unpaid In any suppher as al 
the end of nth il«OUnling )car 
bl Pnoclp;ll amounl due to mICro alld smaU mt"'l""~ 
.) lnten:5t due on ab", e 
d) The amoont of '"lerL'S1 p~,d b~ thc bu)cr In terms ofSecI,on 16 oflhe MSMEO Ae! 2()()(' 
~Jong ""Ih Ike amounlS oflh. pa}mct1! made 10 the suppher ~0I1d Ilk: appomled da) dunnll 
exh aceoununl ,·ear 
el The amount or,merc'l due artd pa)'ab-le for the P¢noo of dda) ,n rn;tkmg pa)'mo:n~ .",-Il1ch 
havc been pa id bUI b., .. yood the ap(X)lnlcd da) dunna Ihe year) btlt "11hool addonS Ih~ ml<'fest 
~o/;ed undn Ihe MSM[D A'I ~006 

I) T1Ie 3mounl of'ntcr~ accrued and raNonon, unpaId al the end 01 QCh accOUI1IUlI )'C:lf 
1/ The amounl offunlk:r mlcrt:S1 rcmamonl due and pa)able ""er! ,n lhe s...::c~,nS)~ 
unlll such dale when the ,nlcresl dues ~s ibme are acl U311~ pa,d 10 Ihe small enterpr'sc for the 
purpose of d'sallowancc as a dcducHble e~pend'iure under SeCHOO 23 of the MSMED ACI 

''''' 
30 Corpo,.,." !l<K'1~ lltfcSllOn, lhilil)' 

t'ur ~hf Vur t: .. ded 
Jhl \brch. 20B 

15.74837 
15.3 17 ~4 
}J7S00 
1,013 01 
~90 88 

~.S5~ 97 

Fur Ihf \ 'nr t:nd rt! 
Jhl \brc h. lOU 

DIS 
DIS 
NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Rs In Lakhs 

.... r Ihe \ u r t: .. ded 
Jisl \larch,lOU 

for tile \ 'nr I: .. ded 
Jhl \larch.lOn 

NIL 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

The Company 15 nOI eo"cred under sectIOn 135 ofille C:ompanles ACI, 20 13 and nu CSR exp¢ndnure has been Incurred dunng Ihe I"'noo 

31 0;'.:10"0" pon03nl 10 s«lion 186 or Ih~ ('ompan;'" ,\tt lOU: 
The eOl1'pany be,ng •• ompan) ,n,ol.'cd ,n pro",d'nB onfraslTuclural fae,hucs ,s C'(emp! from the r~u,,~ms of SeCIIOII 186 ofCoolpan'cs ACI 
:013 lienee. d,selosure und",- SecM .. 18~") 's nol applicable 10 Ihe Compan) 

J: Othrr S~a lu~or) ()jS('lo~u"" 

'I Th~ C<>mpan) ....... no L .. ~n).a<l1ons ,,-'Lh ComP(UHCS struck off undcr se.:uoo :!J8 of Ilk: COInpal1l<'S ACI. 201 J ....- Secl'on S60 of Comran,es Ael, 
1956 durmg Ihe fmane.al )Caf cnd,ng 31St March :023 and 31st March 202:c. 

"I The Compart) has net IllIdcd or m'(SIN In Cr,pIOCUffCllC) or VmUOlI CUITenc) doonglhe finanCial )ear ...... ong 31.st March 202J and 3151. 
March 2022 

",I The Compn;l) do net ha'e 3rt) Bellalm propcrl)' as \HI Jlsi Man:h :023 and 3151. M=h 2022. "he,.., an) prI)C«d.ng hils bco:n ,nluated or po:ndmi 
Il&3msl lhe Compan) for hooid,ng:my Bcnanll property 

"I The C:ompan. do not ha.e an) pnar penot! errOtl m finaoc'al )'car l~'d'ng on 31!ii1 March 1023 and 3151. Ma,..,h 2022 10 be d,sdos..>d separate), on 
St~lemo:nL of ,hartgcs ,n I:\jul(v 

,) The Compall) has no case~ of any charllc$ or ,""u,f\ICuoo, "hoch" )el 10 be rCll'SICrtd "·uh ROC beyond Ihe SidlU1(1) ~flOO In Ihe financla.J )car 
end,ng JISl M=h 2023 and 31 $t March 2022 
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-
lfl!on G,,~~on R(.uri lIij:h • .-. ) Un,ittd 
C I' ,. l ' "SJO')I}L201OGO LJ 7 ~941 

~olr~ 10 financial SIM' r ",., nlS ror Ih~ l ur rnd rd Jh, 'lan:h. 2013 

IAU amoun~ In INR La~hs nCCjll sh(l« 0:\31a and unless OIhc""',se staled) 

'"II [)unng the (,nanclal )e(l( 20~1·lJ and l01' - 2~. the Company ha,'( not ~d\"anced Of loaned or ,",'.:sled funds '0 an) ocher po:rson{sl or cn"I}{'(SI, 

Including foreIgn enmn:511nlCf111~,bal1cs) wnh (he undemand'"gthal the InlennNI31) shalL 
la\ dl=ll~ Of ,nd.rtttl} lend or InWSI In mh.'!" prn;ons or mtilu,s IJm"ficd In lin) ."anner "haISQC'er b) or on heIlalf "fthe compan~ IUllnna.c 
Bend',c,anes) or 

fbI proulk an) lu:u1lIlI(f. 5«U"" 01 the h~e 10 or on ~h;tlf "f\he Ul1,"",lc Benefic .. m.,. 

,"1 Dunng lhe finanCial )eaf 2022·23 and Z021·:!1. the Compan' ha"c not r«e1\ed all} fund from an) perSon") or mUl)!lcs). ",clUI.hng fon:.1Yl 
("hnes Ifund'"a P.lI1yl wllh 'he uooCr$landonlllwhctMr recorded In ","una or OIh~'rwIsc\ Ihal Ihe Compan) shall 
lOll dlrec!i) or ,ndlrecll) knJ or In' cst tn OIher pcrSOlls or enlllll:S Identified ,n any manner "hal5OC' er b) or on bc:half of Ihe 

Funding "art) (Ulumate Ikncfic,aflC'Sj or 
(b) pro>"ldc am guar~m~'I:, S<.,<:unty or the like on bd'3lf of tl>< Uhllnatt Iknefl(lan~s. 

\111) The Comp:ln) has nor granled allY 1"':lIls alld ad'ances '" the naturc of 10011. 10 prOlll(>!cr:;;, dlre<.:tou. KMI' and ocher rdaled p.looes In Ihe fmanclll 
) car eoo",,, j 1st March ~O~J and Jist Man:h 20~~ 

nl The Compan) has not ~nlered In IUlI' lransactlon not recorded In Ihe books ofx,ounl! lhal has be<'n sum:ndert:d or dIsclosed as IOC~ duftn& the 
)o:af In Ihe t3." ~ssnw:nl! uooo:r the Income T"-,, Act. 1961 !Such as 5earch or su,,") or an~ orher rek'ant pI'O\ISIOOS of lhe Income Ta...: ACI. ,%, 

,\ The Compan) has not bc.:n declared as ",Iful dcfaullC1 b) an' banI; or financial ,nst,tut,on or 8O"crnmcnt 01· an) lIU'ernmenl authonr, In the 
linan(lal)ear 2022·23 and 20 21·22 

~t) Th~ Compan) has ~()mphcd "uh the number ofla)Cfl; pn"scnhcd under the Companrcs Acr. 201) 

'") Compan) IS not reqUired to SUbm11 SLllemenl ofcurrell!. as~s wnh Ihc bank aoo therefore recooctlallon oftm. .tatemcnt filed II) the company wnh 
ban]" and the bools of accounts IS not applicable 

""I) Thc Compan) doc:s nor h,:l\e ~ tfl\nS3Cllom In financial rear 2022·23 000 2021·22. where the cornpany has n()\ u~ the bormvolngs from banks 
aoo financial InlOll\Ullon~ for lhe SJXC,fie purpose lOr "h,eh 11 "b 13k ... at the bal:at>cr sMet liue 

",,) The Company doi:5 nor IQ,'~ an' ,mJnO\Olblc properucs as at 3151 March 2023 and 31st March 2022 

w, f Th~ com pan} does n,~ hav~ all} property, plant & t'Qll tpment and onlanll,blc assets 

~"III The Compall) ha,,, Ilot enccred Into an) schemd,s)ofamlllgemenl! dunna the )"eJr ""dlllll) I st March ~0~3 and pcnod end",g 31st " larch ~02~ 

"'"1\ Th" Compall) docs nor ha,'c an) Capllal \\orJ.. " ... P'fo&rCS$. !n,estmC1lc Propert} Intangible ~ al>ll InLlng.obic' M.scu under [);:\'elopmcnl as at 
Jist Man:h. 2021 and Jist March. ~on DUfmg thl: ~ear 1022·2) and 2021·n. thl: companl has nOl (~Ollued:an) of II! Propmy.p1am an..! 
C'l/Ulp!TlC1I1 

jJ R~~nl a~ounl;nR I,ronounrc ment, 

MlIllst'} of (orp,w;ue AffairS r'MCA "1 notifies OC" staooards Of amcoolllcnts III the ~~Is"ng slandards un;Jo:r COInr;llll ~S j Indmn ACCO\lnun& 
Standards) Rules as Issued frOln lime 10 time Oil M~rch JI.2023, MCA amcnd~'Il the Companies IIl1d'3n AC~OIInl"' 8 Standa rds I Am~nJmcm 
Rul,'S.:023 as belo" 

Ind \ S I· "~nt.lion uf .· i n.nd~ 1 S I~lenlC'nb ' ThIS 3mttldmrot requnes the ""t,lles 10 d,sclose the .. malrnaJ lICcoontons poliCIes rather lhan 
their sIgnlfie3nl accoon tlni poliCies The cffecu\c dale for adoption of thiS amc:ooment IS an annual peoods ~"onmng on or afce'" Apnl I 2023 
The Companv has c .... aluall:d the amcndmcnl and Ihe Impact of the amend..,.,nl IS Insignificant In the stand:olone financiailOlDte"",nts 

Ind AS 8- Acce".I;nlt "olido. e llan!!" ;n Afcuunt;n l! . :.1;"1lI10 and .: rrul"· This am.:ndment has ontroducal a dcfimllon of 'accoonllng 
eslllllates' and Included amcndments II> 100 AS lIlo help emlll.-s dlSllnJU.sh chang.., '" ac<:OUflung poliCies from ch:anacs In accounting estnn;lles 
The effecl"'c date for 3doplloo of thIS amendment .s annual pei'lods ~g"'nlng on or after April I 2023 The Company has evalualN the 
arncndmcnt and lhere IS no .mp.lcl on Its slandalone IInanelal statcm.::nts 
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I...,on GU'1l:30n Kr.uri lligh.uy Umi.r d 
CIS ,. 1' ~ 5jO?IlL20!OGOB7~?~ 1 

.... o.rs ." lin~ndal ~ t a . em~nts ror thr ~'ur r ndnl j h t 'breh, lOB 
(All 31ll()Unts In INR La~hs e~cept share data and unless othcrnlse slated) 

Inti AS 12 • Inconl( T a\ n - Thts amendment has narrowed lhe scope oflhe InllLal recognnlon nemptl"" so thaI' s docs not apply to tr;msacllons 
lhat g"e rose to equal and offsel1ong tcmpo<1l~ differences The efr«tlw date for adoption of lhls amernlmem IS annual penods begmnmg on or 
aflcr Aprrll , 1023 The Company has evaluated the amendment and there IS"" Impact on 115 standalone linanctal Slatemcnl 

j~ Olhu lIo"te. 

II The ConI pan)' IS Incorporaled on 2~th December 2020 115 wholl} owned subsld,a~ of I,con Internaltonal limited 1reon Gurgaon Rewa" 
Highwa) Llmne'<.l has entered on to sernce conc.,.,slon arrangement on ~Oth JanUll") 2021 "'tlh Naltonal Htghwa) aUlhonl) of India (NHAI) m 
tcnn of wh,~h NHI\I (Authon t) ) illS authonsed Ihe compan) 10 augment the e.~lsung road fro", Km 0.000 to K.m.t3 S7 lapp'O~nnald) 
46 II knllon the Gurgaon· Pataudl.Rewan s«lIon of National HlghWll~ No 352 (NH·352)1n the state of Hal}ana b)' Four SIX hnmg thereoq Ihe 
proJect\ on deSign . bUild .openl1e and Ir:lOsfcr (lhe '"H}bnd annu lty"l bas,s. "h,dl snail tIC partl~ finance'<.l b} the conceSSionaIre ,,1\0 shall r""o'~r 
ItS l11\eslmenl and costs through pa~·ments 10 tIC ITl!Idc b} the aulhoot) • 10 accordance mlh the term and condluons as 1<:1 fonh 10 Sl. ... "cc 

TGRlll. has awarded the ab<),-e mmtloned ",orl.: to IRC"ON 1ntemauonal lmmed at a fhed cost of 60.605 ~ Lakh, *GST'fi12"o Th lreon 

Tnlemauonal Llm'ted ull date nll.><:d flfleen lI"Csof amounl Its 14806 13 Lakh" e 2~ 3S °0 of the total woo.: 
:) Operating segment Trn, eompan} 's engagoo III bus, neSS of de'-clopment ma'nlcnance and managemem of NH·352 III the SlaW of Hal)ana on 
HAM model. since company has slOgle bu.slOrss ami geographICal ~gment hence no relevant dlSdosure Si\'en In finanCial statement 

3) The eompan) has a system of perodlC confirmatIOn of balances ffom bank and other parties S<J for as trade other payable ami loans and 
a(hances as concerned, the balanus confirma tion Ictter were sent to parties. Balances of WAle of 1m, Trade Recel\abk other asSo!tS • Trade and 
other ra~able are subject to ContimlatiOllS rec"""llalioos and COll""lumllal adJustmen1, ,f an)" RecOlIC!hauons are carned out 00 ""'gmng baSIS 
Howe".r managemem doe" "I){ nccpllO 1m •• an) matcnallinanc,ai Impact of such p.:ndlng conformations r«onclhallon, 

~) Certain reciasslfic3110nS have tlCen made to Ihe comparat"-. penud', tlnanela! StatementS to enhance I:('mparablh~ ,nih the currenl year's 
finam,iaJ statem~nts. These ,«Iass,licat'ons haw no etr.:cl on lhe reportoo resul~ of the operal1OOS 

5 I F,gur.:s rounded OfrlO lhe o.:aresl rupees In Lakh 

As per our rcpo" of e'en date 
For R Jan Malt~ &'Co, 

Place No,da ,-<"V 
Date ,<10$1' 

For and on behal f oflhe Board of Directors of 
Ircon Gurgaon Rewafl Il'ghwa) l .mned 

Altn RO) Choudhury 
(Ch,efFlOance Offic • .'n 

Place New Delill 

Date ;<ldJ Nd-<'!) 

M"'~ 
(o. ,..-.:tor) 

lOIN -085\1013\ 

~,:!"~ 
ICh,ef ~:ku~:i'~ffjcer) 

A \J.J-'" - ,,-,.­

Anklt hln 
(Compan} s.,.,retaf)·) 

(MemberShip No 35053) 
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Q61P14i(ICfi ~&lqflafTq;r Cfiltlfatl 
~"ffh lfill\iQCfi ,~ ~ 

C/o 'Iffi<f~ P14"Cfi ~ Q61~&lllit~ 
Office of the Director General of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
C/o Comptroller and Auditor General of India 

4. "'~l1=~'Tnql"'ct ~l1fIf. 'l{ ~ 4, Decn Da)al Upadh)aya Marg. New Delhi .. I 10002 
~IW1InTnllh ft Pl""'~ 

~: DGA/RC/AA-IGRHL/78 -19/2023-24j,.9(..1 

~f<ttr~, 
$~Cf)I'1 'IS ' Irq ~ ~ ~fJ'!e'5 , 
m-4,~~,~, 
~~-110007 

~'1i Cf) :-t~ .07 .. 2023 

~: 311l1i 2023 Cj;)'H&lIC(I ri$-~ ~'lCf)I"'1 '1'S'liq ~~R1fJ'!e;s $-RI'J'lQ 

~ q 'lOn' tR <f;"q;ft JfRI Pi Q &I 2013 qft 'tlm 143 (6 )( b) $-~ 'I-l'l'«f $- Pi ti:! Cf) 

lfCf &I (i I d (gj q;ft arct> qft R Ul RJI Q i I 

fi, $~Cf)I'1 Ij'5 'lrq ~~ ~fJ'!e6 ~ 31l1fTf 2023 em *l 111l{1 Cfl'f~~ ~q~uW 

1R <f>q;:ft ~ 2013 CflT £fRT 143 (6) (b) ~ ~ ~ ~ Pl q;;jCf) 'QC1' 11 (i 18@Q;ftafCf)'CflT 

Rcq\1lll1r ~ 'Cf)'X xm t I 
wu:rr ~ lf5I CflT ~ e1l'1 Cf) 'I • mf{d CflT ~ ~ \i!TQ1 
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" 

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (h) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the fmancial 

reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor 

appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) 

of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under 

Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the 

standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated 

to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023 . 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided 

not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Gurgaon 

Rewari Highway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a) 

of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: ~y .07.2023 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 

72



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IRCON GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY LIMITED 
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Ircon International Limited) 

CIN: U45309DL2020GOI374941 




